
 
CITY OF HILLSBORO 

CITY COUNCIL MEETING 
 

Agenda – Special Meeting - Tuesday, February 20, 2024, at 6:30 p.m. 
Zoom Link: https://us02web.zoom.us/j/81338906250 
 

A.  Meeting Called to Order 

B. Approval of Consent Agenda 

1. Vouchers totaling $295,857.07 

2. Minutes from the February 6, 2024 meeting 

3. CDBG Vouchers totaling $95,552.47 

4. Revised Not to Exceed Cost for approved transformer purchase on 2/6/24 to $128,000  

C. Public Comment 

D. Annual Special Law Enforcement Trust Fund Report, PD Sgt. John Huebert  

E. Proclamation Declaring February 17 – 24, 2024 as National FFA Week 

F. Business Items 

1. Consideration of Ordinance 1383 changing the zoning of 501 S Main to R-2 Two-Family 

Dwelling from C-S Highway Service District 

2. Consideration of contractual mowing contract for 2024 

3. Consideration of proposal to upgrade the Golf Clubhouse bathroom to ADA standards  

4. Hillsboro Ford Invoices totaling $1,593.55 

G. Discussion Items 

1. Credit Card Fees 

2. Revisions to Municipal Policy 70: Aquatic Center Admission Policy 

3. Revisions to Municipal Policy 93: electrical service disconnection 

4. 2023 Year in Review 

H. City Administrator’s Report 

I. Public Comments 

J. Council Comments 

K. Adjournment 

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/81338906250






































Hillsboro, Kansas 
February 6, 2024 
 
1. The City Council met in special session via Zoom and in person on Tuesday, February 6, 2024, at 6:30pm with 
Mayor Lou Thurston and Council members Blake Beye, Brent Driggers, Byron McCarty, and Ronald Wilkins 
participating.  
 
Members Absent:  None. 
 
2. Others Participating:  Andrew Kovar, City Attorney; Matt Stiles, City Administrator; Danielle Bartel, City Clerk; 
Avery Unruh & Tyler Ediger, Golf Course; Brooke Carroll & James Ging, KPP Energy; David Zeller of 108 S Birch. 
 
3. CALL TO ORDER:  Mayor Lou Thurston called the meeting to order at 6:30pm. 
 
4. APPROVAL OF CONSENT AGENDA 

VOUCHERS in the amount of $95,763.21. 

MINUTES for the regular council meeting dated January 23, 2024. 

Council member McCarty motioned to approve the consent agenda. Council member Beye seconded. Motion 
carried.   
 
5. PUBLIC COMMENT:  David Zeller of 108 S Birch addressed the Council regarding the Capital Improvement 
Plan, specifically about street improvements and alley access. He also inquired about utility replacement during 
projects and residential driveway approaches. Mayor Lou thanked David for coming to the meeting. No 
additional public comments were made. 
 
6. PACE SOLAR PROJECT DISCUSSION WITH KPP ENERGY:  Brooke Carroll and James Ging of KPP Energy 
provided an update on the solar project and shared a written report. They described the process, timeline, and 
benefits of the project. Zeller inquired about the impact resistance of the panels. Ging described the panels’ 
resistance and noted that KPP takes on the risk and would be responsible for replacing damaged panels. 
Administrator Stiles reviewed the proposed area of the project and the easement access. 
 
Council member Beye motioned to approve the Electric Generation Utility Easement as presented. Council 
member McCarty seconded. Motion carried.  
 
7. ANNUAL DEPARTMENT HEAD REPORT – GOLF COURSE:  Avery Unruh, the Golf Course Superintendent, 
shared of membership increases over the past year, provided an update on the golf clubhouse renovation 
project, and described the changing role of the golf course association.  Avery thanked the Association and Gary 
Andrews for their efforts to make the course what it is today. 
 
GOLF CLUBHOUSE DECK:  Unruh described the need for improvements to the deck at the clubhouse. He showed 
several areas that should be repaired, then provided a cost estimate and timeline from Synergy Maintenance & 
Construction. Unruh stated the Golf Course Association would contribute $20,000 towards this project. Council 
discussion regarding the deck repairs and the need for those to be completed. Council also inquired about the 
increased wear on equipment, such as golf carts, with the increase in memberships.   
 
Council member Beye motioned to accept the bid from Synergy and approve the project at a cost not to exceed 
$60,000 with the Golf Association’s contribution of $20,000. Council member McCarty seconded. Motion 
carried.  
 
Council requested staff provide a quote for the ADA bathrooms in the clubhouse at the next council meeting.  
 
8. BUSINESS ITEMS: 
 
TRANSFORMER PURCHASE:  Administrator Stiles shared a quote from Midwest Electric Transformer Services for 
twelve 50 KVA transformers and one 300 KVA transformer for a total with tax not to exceed $126,000. He noted 
the significant delay in getting these transformers after ordering.  
 
Council member Wilkins motioned to approve the proposed transformer purchases from Midwest Electric 
Transformer Services at a cost not to exceed $126,000. Council member McCarty seconded. Motion carried.   
 
ELECTRIC BUCKET TRUCK:  Administrator Stiles described the lead time required to purchase electric bucket 
trucks and proposed that staff notify Altec of the City’s desire to purchase a 2026 bucket truck.  
 



Council member McCarty motioned to give staff approval to notify Altec of the City’s desire to purchase a 2026 
bucket truck. Council member Beye seconded. Motion carried.   
 
NOTE: Council member Driggers left the meeting. A quorum remained present for the duration of the meeting.  
 
COMPUTER REPLACEMENTS FROM NETWORKS PLUS:  Administrator Stiles reviewed the proposal from 
Networks Plus to replace and install seven computers. 
 
Council member Beye motioned to approve the proposal from Networks Plus for $10,625. Council member 
McCarty seconded. Motion carried.   
 
9. LAND BANK MEETING:  Council recessed the regular City Council meeting to enter a Land Bank Meeting at 
7:40pm. The regular City Council meeting resumed at 7:46pm.  
 
10. DISCUSSION ITEMS 
 
CREDIT CARD FEES:  Administrator Stiles provided background regarding credit card fees and the amount paid 
for processing cards in 2022 and 2023. Staff felt it would be beneficial to inform Council of the increase 
processing fees. Administrator Stiles noted government entities can pass along the processing fees as 
convenience fees. Council discussion regarding payment types, transaction fee percentages, and prior year data.  
 
Zeller commented regarding the convenience of using a card and inquired about a notice to customers for the 
transaction fee when paying online. 
 
Council requested the topic be on the agenda for the next meeting, which would allow council members time to 
inquire with constituents.  
 
11. EXECUTIVE SESSION: Ronald Wilkins motioned for the City Council recess into executive session for the 
purpose of preliminary discussion of acquisition of property pursuant to KSA 75-4319 (b)(6) for a period of 20 
minutes. The session will include the City Administrator and City Attorney. The open meeting will resume at 
8:20pm. Council member Beye seconded. Motion carried. 
 
No action was taken during the executive session. 
 
12. CITY ADMINISTRATOR’S REPORT:  Administrator Stiles reported on the following: 

 State Legislature 
 Vacancies 
 Planning Commission 
 Adams Street Walkthrough 
 Reliable Public Power Provider Working Group 
 Fire District Meeting 

 
13. PUBLIC COMMENTS:  Zeller stated a telephone pole outside of his fence is connected to a guidewire inside 
of the fence. He asked to be added to the list to replace the pole. Zeller also inquired about the electric rate for 
consumers once the solar project is complete. Mayor Lou shared that rates would remain the same, unless 
significant changes are present, then rates could be adjusted accordingly.  
 
14. COUNCIL COMMENTS:  None.  
 
15. ADJOURNMENT:  Council meeting adjourned at 8:31pm. 
 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
  _______________________________________  
   LOUIS THURSTON, MAYOR 
 
 
 _______________________________________  
  DANIELLE BARTEL, CITY CLERK  



DATE CHECK # DESCRIPTION AMOUNT

2/20/2024 1007 JGR ARCHITECTS - DESIGN & PROFESSIONAL FEES 211 S ELM - CDBG 19,207.95  

2/20/2024 1008 GAME TIME - PLAYGROUND EQUIPMENT 211 S ELM - CDBG 76,248.52  

2/20/2024 1009 KS PUBLISHING - CONTRACTING BID AD 211 S ELM - CDBG 96.00  

FEBRUARY 20, 2024 95,552.47$   

CITY OF HILLSBORO - CDBG 
FEBRUARY 20, 2024

CDBG - VOUCHERS FOR APPROVAL



     

Page 1 of 3       Report Date: February 5, 2024 

JESSEY J. HIEBERT 

★★ CHIEF OF POLICE ★★ 

jhiebert@hillsboropolice.net 
 

414 N ASH ● HILLSBORO, KS 67063 
620-947-3440 OFFICE ● 620-947-0172 FAX 

 
 

RANDAL G. BRAZIL 

★ ASSISTANT CHIEF ★ 

rbrazil@hillsboropolice.net

Report Year: 2023 

To whom it may concern, 

 

The following is a list of all currency seized and deposited into the Special Law Enforcement 

Trust Fund (SLETF) and property seized and held by the Hillsboro Police Department in the 

calendar year 2023 pending forfeiture. 

 

Item Seized Description 

U.S. Currency $1067.00 (2023-067) 

Vehicle 2009 Saturn Outlook; VIN 5GZER13D49J136475 (2023-067) 

 

The following is a list of all currency and property seized for forfeiture by the Hillsboro Police 

Department and has been awarded to the by Order of the Court in the calendar year 2023. 

 

Item Forfeited Description 

U.S. Currency None 

Property None 

 

During the calendar year 2023, the Hillsboro Police Department referred zero (0) cases to the 

Kansas Alcoholic Beverage Control (ABC). As a result, subjects involved in these cases were 

assess taxes and penalties associated with the possession of illicit substances without proper proof 

of paid taxes; pursuant to K.S.A.  79-5202. Any proceed pay to the Hillsboro Police Department 

by State of Kansas Treasure related to these assessments will be deposited in the SLETF pursuant 

to K.S.A. 79-5211 and included in the annual State mandated reporting.  

 

The following is a list of deposits made to the Hillsboro Police Department resulting from Drug 

Tax assessments. Deposits are an Agency Share (percentage) of payments made against, current 

and outstanding past, tax assessments to the Kansas Department of Revenue on drugs seized by 

the Hillsboro Police Department or as part of a joint investigation with another agency. 

 

Assessment Payment Description 

$477.90 Reference 2022-073, Assessment on 28gm of Methamphetamine 

 
  



 
 

Page 2 of 3       Report Date: February 5, 2024 

 

Continuation of Report 
Report Year: 2023 

 

The following is a list of all property (awarded by Order of Forfeiture) currently in the 

possession of the Hillsboro Police Department at the end of 2023.  

 

Item Description 

Firearm SIG SAUER P320 9mm – S#58A134071 (2020-097) 

Vehicle 2010 Toyota Corolla; VIN 2T1BU4EE8AC504683 (2022-050) 

 

The following is a list of property (awarded by Order of Forfeiture) sold/auctioned by the 

Hillsboro Police Department, during the calendar year 2023, and proceeds deposited into the 

SLETF account. 

 

Item Sold Sold Amount 

None  

 

The following is a list of property (awarded by Order of Forfeiture) destroyed by the Hillsboro 

Police Department during the calendar year 2023. 

 

Item Destroyed Description 

None  

 

The following is a list of expenditures from the SLETF account, in the calendar year 2023.  

 

Amount Description 

None  

 

The following is a list of all currency seized and deposited into the SLETF and property seized 

and held by the Hillsboro Police Department in the calendar year 2023 that has been voluntarily 

returned or ordered returned by court order. 

 

Item Seized Description 

U.S. Currency None 

Vehicle None 

 

 

  



 
 

Page 3 of 3       Report Date: February 5, 2024 

 

Continuation of Report 
Report Year: 2023 

 

The following is an overview of the Hillsboro Police Department SLETF as reported to the KBI 

in the 2023 Kansas Asset Seizure and Forfeiture Repository (KASFR) Annual Report. 

  

Total 

Beginning 

Balance  

(Year End 

2022) 

Deposits 

Pending 

Forfeiture  

(Year End 

2023) 

Drug Tax 

Proceeds 

Deposits 

(2023) 

Deposits  

Awarded 

by 

Forfeiture 

(2023) 

Auction / 

Sale 

Proceeds 

(2023) 

Expenditures 

(2023) 

2023 

Total 

Ending 

Balance  

$3,767.88 +$1067 +$477.90 +0.00 +$0.00 -$0.00 $5,312.78 

 

End of Year Expendable Funds: 
 
Balance from Forfeitures -  $ 3,767.88 

Balance from Drug Tax   -   $    477.90 

                              Total   -   $ 4,245.78 

 

 

Accounting records (Addendum A) maintained by the Hillsboro Police Department have been 

found to accurately reflect all deposits, expenditures, transfers, and balances of the SLETF and 

balance with the SLETF General Ledger Reports from the City Clerk (Addendum B). 

 

The Hillsboro Police Department has met all requirement of the Kansas Standard Asset Seizure 

and Forfeiture Act (KSASFA). All seizures for forfeiture and Drug Tax proceeds, during the 

calendar year 2023, have been reported to the KBI’s Kansas Asset Seizure and Forfeiture 

Repository (KASFR) as required to by K.S.A. 60-4127. An annual Financial Report for Hillsboro 

Police Department SLETF has been submitted to the KBI’s KASFR. 

 

 

 

       

SGT John T. Huebert 

Hillsboro Police Department 
 



H
il

ls
b

or
o

 P
o

li
ce

 D
ep

ar
tm

en
t 

A
ss

et
 F

or
fe

it
u

re

A
cc

ou
n

ts
 S

u
m

m
ar

y
A

c
c
o
u
n
t

T
o
ta

l 
D

e
p
o
si

ts

T
o
ta

l 

W
it

h
d
ra

w
a
ls

A
c
c
o
u
n
t 

T
o
ta

l

C
a
sh

 A
ss

e
ts

 P
e
n
d
in

g
 F

o
rf

e
it

u
re

$
6
,7

0
2
.0

0
-$

5
,6

3
5
.0

0
$
1
,0

6
7
.0

0

S
ta

te
 F

o
rf

e
it

u
re

 P
ro

c
e
e
d
s

$
5
,6

3
5
.0

0
-$

1
,8

6
7
.1

2
$
3
,7

6
7
.8

8

F
e
d
e
ra

l 
F
o
rf

e
it

u
re

 P
ro

c
e
e
d
s

$
0
.0

0
$
0
.0

0
$
0
.0

0

T
o
ta

l 
o
f 

F
o
rf

e
it

u
re

 P
ro

c
e
e
d
s

$
4
,8

3
4
.8

8

S
ta

te
 A

ss
e
ss

m
e
n
t 

P
ro

c
e
e
d
s 

(D
ru

g
 T

a
x
)

$
4
7
7
.9

0
$
0
.0

0
$
4
7
7
.9

0

S
L
E
T

F
 T

o
ta

l 
A

c
c
o
u
n
t 

B
a
la

n
c
e

$
5
,3

1
2
.7

8

S
L
E
T

F
 E

x
p
e
n
d
a
b
le

 F
u
n
d
s

$
4
,2

4
5
.7

8

 P
h
y
si

c
a
l 
P
ro

p
e
rt

y

T
o
ta

l 
  
  

 

P
ro

p
e
rt

y
 V

a
lu

e

V
a
lu

e
 o

f 
P
ro

p
e
rt

y
 P

e
n
d
in

g
 F

o
rf

e
it

u
re

$
2
,8

0
0
.0

0

V
a
lu

e
 o

f 
F
o
rf

e
it

e
d
 P

ro
p
e
rt

y
 C

o
n
v
e
rt

e
d
 t

o
 

H
il
ls

b
o
ro

 P
o
li
c
e
 D

e
p
a
rt

m
e
n
t 

A
ss

e
t

$
2
,9

5
0
.0

0

(A
d
d
e
n
d
u
m

 A
)

P
ag

e 
1 

of
 8

D
at

e 
of

 R
ep

or
t:

 0
1/

24
/2

02
4



H
il

ls
b

or
o 

P
ol

ic
e 

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t 

A
ss

et
 F

or
fe

it
u

re

C
as

h
 A

ss
et

s 
Se

iz
ed

 -
 H

ol
d

in
g 

A
cc

ou
n

t
L

E
G

E
N

D
C

U
R

R
E

N
T

 B
A

L
A

N
C

E

$
1
,0

6
7
.0

0

C
H

E
C
K
/
 

C
O

D
E

D
A
T
E

D
E
S
C
R
IP

T
IO

N
C
A
S
H

 S
E
IZ

U
R
E
 T

O
T
A
L

W
IT

H
D

R
A
W

A
L

D
E
P
O

S
IT

B
A
L
A
N

C
E

F
E

0
5
/
0
2
/
2
0
1
8

2
0
1
8
-0

2
0
 -

 $
9
5
7
.0

0
$
9
5
7
.0

0
$
0
.0

0

J
F
A

1
0
/
2
4
/
2
0
1
8

2
0
1
8
-0

2
0
/
2
0
1
8
-C

R
-9

0
/
M

N
-2

0
1
8
-C

V
-3

4
$
0
.0

0

F
E

0
5
/
0
5
/
2
0
2
0

2
0
2
0
-0

5
4
 -

 $
1
6
4
.0

0
$
1
6
4
.0

0
$
0
.0

0

F
E

0
6
/
0
2
/
2
0
2
0

2
0
2
0
-0

6
3
 -

 $
2
9
8
0
.0

0
$
2
,9

8
0
.0

0
$
0
.0

0

F
E

0
9
/
0
3
/
2
0
2
0

2
0
2
0
-0

9
7
 -

 $
1
1
2
8
.0

0
$
1
,1

2
8
.0

0
$
0
.0

0

J
F
A

1
0
/
2
1
/
2
0
2
0

2
0
2
0
-0

5
4
/
2
0
2
0
-C

R
-1

2
2
/
M

N
-2

0
2
0
-C

V
-3

8
$
0
.0

0

J
F
A

1
1
/
3
0
/
2
0
2
0

2
0
2
0
-0

6
3
/
2
0
2
0
-C

R
-1

2
6
/
M

N
-2

0
2
0
-C

V
-3

6
$
0
.0

0

--
--

-
1
2
/
0
9
/
2
0
2
0

S
L
E
 T

ru
st

 F
u
n
d
 O

p
e
n
e
d
 b

y
 C

it
y
 C

le
rk

S
L
E
 T

ru
st

 F
u
n
d
 

O
p
e
n
e
d
 b

y
 C

it
y
 C

le
rk

$
0
.0

0
$
0
.0

0
$
0
.0

0

F
H

1
2
/
0
9
/
2
0
2
0

2
0
1
8
-0

2
0
/
2
0
1
8
-C

R
-9

0
/
M

N
-2

0
1
8
-C

V
-3

4
$
9
5
7
.0

0
$
9
5
7
.0

0

F
H

1
2
/
0
9
/
2
0
2
0

2
0
2
0
-0

5
4
/
2
0
2
0
-C

R
-1

2
2
/
M

N
-2

0
2
0
-C

V
-3

8
$
1
6
4
.0

0
$
1
,1

2
1
.0

0

F
H

1
2
/
0
9
/
2
0
2
0

2
0
2
0
-0

6
3
/
2
0
2
0
-C

R
-1

2
6
/
M

N
-2

0
2
0
-C

V
-3

6
$
2
,9

8
0
.0

0
$
4
,1

0
1
.0

0

F
H

1
2
/
0
9
/
2
0
2
0

2
0
2
0
-0

9
7
/
2
0
2
0
-C

R
-1

6
4
/
M

N
-2

0
2
0
-C

V
-5

5
$
1
,1

2
8
.0

0
$
5
,2

2
9
.0

0

J
F
P

1
2
/
0
9
/
2
0
2
0

2
0
1
8
-0

2
0
/
2
0
1
8
-C

R
-9

0
/
M

N
-2

0
1
8
-C

V
-3

4
$
9
5
7
.0

0
$
4
,2

7
2
.0

0

J
F
P

1
2
/
0
9
/
2
0
2
0

2
0
2
0
-0

5
4
/
2
0
2
0
-C

R
-1

2
2
/
M

N
-2

0
2
0
-C

V
-3

8
$
1
6
4
.0

0
$
4
,1

0
8
.0

0

J
F
P

1
2
/
0
9
/
2
0
2
0

2
0
2
0
-0

6
3
/
2
0
2
0
-C

R
-1

2
6
/
M

N
-2

0
2
0
-C

V
-3

6
$
2
,9

8
0
.0

0
$
1
,1

2
8
.0

0

J
F
A

1
2
/
1
4
/
2
0
2
0

2
0
2
0
-0

9
7
/
2
0
2
0
-C

R
-1

6
4
/
M

N
-2

0
2
0
-C

V
-5

5
$
1
,1

2
8
.0

0

J
F
A
 =

 J
u
d
g
e
m

e
n
t 

o
f 

F
o
rf

e
it

u
re

 A
w

a
rd

e
d

F
H

 =
 F

o
rf

e
it

u
re

 D
e
p
o
si

te
d
 i
n
 H

o
ld

in
g

F
R
 =

 F
o
rf

e
it

u
re

 R
e
tu

rn

F
E
 =

 F
o
rf

e
it

u
re

 i
n
 E

v
id

e
n
c
e
 

J
F
P
 -

 J
u
d
g
e
m

e
n
t 

o
f 

F
o
rf

e
it

u
re

 T
ra

n
sf

e
rr

e
d
 t

o
 P

ro
c
e
e
d
s

(A
d
d
e
n
d
u
m

 A
)

P
ag

e 
2 

of
 8

D
at

e 
of

 R
ep

or
t:

 0
1/

24
/2

02
4



H
il

ls
b

or
o 

P
ol

ic
e 

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t 

A
ss

et
 F

or
fe

it
u

re

C
as

h
 A

ss
et

s 
Se

iz
ed

 -
 H

ol
d

in
g 

A
cc

ou
n

t
L

E
G

E
N

D
C

U
R

R
E

N
T

 B
A

L
A

N
C

E

$
1
,0

6
7
.0

0

C
H

E
C
K
/
 

C
O

D
E

D
A
T
E

D
E
S
C
R
IP

T
IO

N
C
A
S
H

 S
E
IZ

U
R
E
 T

O
T
A
L

W
IT

H
D

R
A
W

A
L

D
E
P
O

S
IT

B
A
L
A
N

C
E

J
F
A
 =

 J
u
d
g
e
m

e
n
t 

o
f 

F
o
rf

e
it

u
re

 A
w

a
rd

e
d

F
H

 =
 F

o
rf

e
it

u
re

 D
e
p
o
si

te
d
 i
n
 H

o
ld

in
g

F
R
 =

 F
o
rf

e
it

u
re

 R
e
tu

rn

F
E
 =

 F
o
rf

e
it

u
re

 i
n
 E

v
id

e
n
c
e
 

J
F
P
 -

 J
u
d
g
e
m

e
n
t 

o
f 

F
o
rf

e
it

u
re

 T
ra

n
sf

e
rr

e
d
 t

o
 P

ro
c
e
e
d
s

J
F
P

1
2
/
1
5
/
2
0
2
0

2
0
2
0
-0

9
7
/
2
0
2
0
-C

R
-1

6
4
/
M

N
-2

0
2
0
-C

V
-5

5
$
1
,1

2
8
.0

0
$
0
.0

0

F
E

0
4
/
2
1
/
2
0
2
1

2
0
2
1
-0

2
4
 -

 $
4
0
6
.0

0
$
4
0
6
.0

0
$
0
.0

0

F
H

0
4
/
2
8
/
2
0
2
1

2
0
2
1
-0

2
4
/
2
0
2
1
-C

R
-7

6
/
M

N
-2

0
2
1
-C

V
-1

8
$
4
0
6
.0

0
$
4
0
6
.0

0

J
F
A

0
8
/
0
3
/
2
0
2
1

2
0
2
1
-0

2
4
/
2
0
2
1
-C

R
-7

6
/
M

N
-2

0
2
1
-C

V
-1

8
$
4
0
6
.0

0

J
F
P

0
8
/
0
3
/
2
0
2
1

2
0
2
1
-0

2
4
/
2
0
2
1
-C

R
-7

6
/
M

N
-2

0
2
1
-C

V
-1

8
$
4
0
6
.0

0
$
0
.0

0

F
E

1
1
/
0
5
/
2
0
2
3

2
0
2
3
-0

6
7
 -

 $
1
0
6
7
.0

0
$
1
,0

6
7
.0

0
$
0
.0

0

F
H

1
1
/
2
8
/
2
0
2
3

2
0
2
3
-0

6
7
/
M

N
-2

0
2
3
-C

R
-3

0
0
0
1
1
/
M

N
-2

0
2
3
-C

V
-3

0
0
0
0
7

$
1
,0

6
7
.0

0
$
1
,0

6
7
.0

0

T
o
ta

ls
T

ra
n
sa

c
ti

o
n
 c

o
u
n
t:

 2
3

$
6
,7

0
2
.0

0
$
5
,6

3
5
.0

0
$
6
,7

0
2
.0

0
$
1
,0

6
7
.0

0

(A
d
d
e
n
d
u
m

 A
)

P
ag

e 
3 

of
 8

D
at

e 
of

 R
ep

or
t:

 0
1/

24
/2

02
4



H
il

ls
b

or
o

 P
o

li
ce

 D
ep

ar
tm

en
t 

A
ss

et
 F

or
fe

it
u

re

St
at

e 
F

or
fe

it
u

re
 P

ro
ce

ed
s

L
E

G
E

N
D

C
U

R
R

E
N

T
 B

A
L

A
N

C
E

P
U

R
 =

 P
u
rc

h
a
se

$
3
,7

6
7
.8

8
C
I 
=
 F

u
n
d
s 

N
e
e
d
e
d
 f

o
r 

C
I/

C
o
n
tr

o
ll
e
d
 

C
H

E
C
K
/
 

C
O

D
E

D
A
T
E

T
R
A
N

S
A
C
T
IO

N
D

E
S
C
R
IP

T
IO

N
W

IT
H

D
R
A
W

A
L

D
E
P
O

S
IT

B
A
L
A
N

C
E

--
--

-
1
2
/
0
9
/
2
0
2
0

A
c
c
o
u
n
t 

O
p
e
n
e
d

S
L
E
 T

ru
st

 F
u
n
d
 O

p
e
n
e
d
 b

y
 C

it
y
 C

le
rk

$
0
.0

0

J
F
D

1
2
/
0
9
/
2
0
2
0

J
u
d
g
e
m

e
n
t 

o
f 

F
o
rf

e
it

u
re

 

D
e
p
o
si

t
2
0
1
8
-0

2
0
/
2
0
1
8
-C

R
-9

0
/
M

N
-2

0
1
8
-C

V
-3

4
$
9
5
7
.0

0
$
9
5
7
.0

0

J
F
D

1
2
/
0
9
/
2
0
2
0

J
u
d
g
e
m

e
n
t 

o
f 

F
o
rf

e
it

u
re

 

D
e
p
o
si

t
2
0
2
0
-0

5
4
/
2
0
2
0
-C

R
-1

2
2
/
M

N
-2

0
2
0
-C

V
-3

8
$
1
6
4
.0

0
$
1
,1

2
1
.0

0

J
F
D

1
2
/
0
9
/
2
0
2
0

J
u
d
g
e
m

e
n
t 

o
f 

F
o
rf

e
it

u
re

 

D
e
p
o
si

t
2
0
2
0
-0

6
3
/
2
0
2
0
-C

R
-1

2
6
/
M

N
-2

0
2
0
-C

V
-3

6
$
2
,9

8
0
.0

0
$
4
,1

0
1
.0

0

3
1
1
6
0
/
A
F

1
2
/
1
0
/
2
0
2
0

A
tt

o
rn

e
y
 F

e
e

2
0
1
8
-0

2
0
/
2
0
1
8
-C

R
-9

0
/
M

N
-2

0
1
8
-C

V
-3

4
$
1
4
3
.5

5
$
3
,9

5
7
.4

5

3
1
1
6
1
/
A
F

1
2
/
1
0
/
2
0
2
0

A
tt

o
rn

e
y
 F

e
e

2
0
2
0
-0

5
4
/
2
0
2
0
-C

R
-1

2
2
/
M

N
-2

0
2
0
-C

V
-3

8
$
2
4
.6

0
$
3
,9

3
2
.8

5

3
1
1
6
2
/
A
F

1
2
/
1
0
/
2
0
2
0

A
tt

o
rn

e
y
 F

e
e

2
0
2
0
-0

6
3
/
2
0
2
0
-C

R
-1

2
6
/
M

N
-2

0
2
0
-C

V
-3

6
$
4
4
7
.0

0
$
3
,4

8
5
.8

5

3
1
1
6
3
/
 

A
S
O

J
1
2
/
1
0
/
2
0
2
0

A
ss

e
t 

S
h
a
ri

n
g
-M

N
S
O

 2
0
-2

7
4

2
0
2
0
-0

6
3
/
2
0
2
0
-C

R
-1

2
6
/
M

N
-2

0
2
0
-C

V
-3

6
$
2
9
8
.0

0
$
3
,1

8
7
.8

5

J
F
D

1
2
/
1
5
/
2
0
2
0

J
u
d
g
e
m

e
n
t 

o
f 

F
o
rf

e
it

u
re

 

D
e
p
o
si

t
2
0
2
0
-0

9
7
/
2
0
2
0
-C

R
-1

6
4
/
M

N
-2

0
2
0
-C

V
-5

5
$
1
,1

2
8
.0

0
$
4
,3

1
5
.8

5

3
1
2
1
8
/
A
F

1
2
/
1
5
/
2
0
2
0

A
tt

o
rn

e
y
 F

e
e

2
0
2
0
-0

9
7
/
2
0
2
0
-C

R
-1

6
4
/
M

N
-2

0
2
0
-C

V
-5

5
$
1
6
9
.2

0
$
4
,1

4
6
.6

5

J
F
D

0
8
/
0
3
/
2
0
2
1

J
u
d
g
e
m

e
n
t 

o
f 

F
o
rf

e
it

u
re

 

D
e
p
o
si

t
2
0
2
1
-0

2
4
/
2
0
2
1
-C

R
-7

6
/
M

N
-2

0
2
1
-C

V
-1

8
$
4
0
6
.0

0
$
4
,5

5
2
.6

5

3
2
2
0
8
/
A
F

0
8
/
1
9
/
2
0
2
1

A
tt

o
rn

e
y
 F

e
e

2
0
2
1
-0

2
4
/
2
0
2
1
-C

R
-7

6
/
M

N
-2

0
2
1
-C

V
-1

8
$
6
0
.9

0
$
4
,4

9
1
.7

5

3
3
6
4
4
/
P
U

R
1
0
/
1
7
/
2
0
2
2

M
y
 A

la
rm

 S
e
rv

ic
e
  

  

In
v
o
ic

e
#
 1

1
3
8

P
u
rc

h
a
se

 o
f 

A
N

P
R
 -

 C
M

IP
7
9
2
3
N

W
L
P
R
-

3
2
R
 -

 S
N

 8
4
0
2
2
0
6
6
8
1
X
0
0
0
9
5

$
7
2
3
.8

7
$
3
,7

6
7
.8

8

T
o
ta

ls
T

ra
n
sa

c
ti

o
n
 c

o
u
n
t:

 1
3

$
1
,8

6
7
.1

2
$
5
,6

3
5
.0

0
$
3
,7

6
7
.8

8

J
F
D

 =
 J

u
d
g
e
m

e
n
t 

o
f 

F
o
rf

e
it

u
re

 D
e
p
o
si

t

A
F
 =

 A
tt

o
rn

e
y
 F

e
e

A
S
O

J
 =

 A
ss

e
t 

S
h
a
ri

n
g
 O

J

(A
d
d
e
n
d
u
m

 A
)

P
ag

e 
4 

of
 8

D
at

e 
of

 R
ep

or
t:

 0
1/

24
/2

02
4



H
il

ls
b

or
o

 P
o

li
ce

 D
ep

ar
tm

en
t 

A
ss

et
 F

or
fe

it
u

re

P
h

y
si

ca
l 

P
ro

p
er

ty
 S

ei
ze

d
L

E
G

E
N

D
C

U
R

R
E

N
T

 B
A

L
A

N
C

E

A
S
S
E
T
 -

 T
ra

n
sf

e
rr

e
d
 t

o
 D

e
p
a
rt

m
e
n
t 

U
se

$
2
,8

0
0
.0

0
R
T
N

D
 -

 P
ro

p
e
rt

y
 R

e
tu

rn
e
d

C
O

D
E

D
A
T
E

C
A
S
E

D
E
S
C
R
IP

T
IO

N
 O

F
 P

R
O

P
E
R
T
Y

E
S
T
. 

P
R
O

P
E
R
T
Y
 V

A
L
U

E

--
--

-
1
2
/
0
9
/
2
0
2
0

A
c
c
o
u
n
t 

O
p
e
n
e
d

S
L
E
 T

ru
st

 F
u
n
d
 O

p
e
n
e
d
 b

y
 C

it
y
 C

le
rk

$
0
.0

0

P
P
S

0
9
/
0
3
/
2
0
2
0

2
0
2
0
-0

9
7
/
2
0
2
0
-C

R
-1

6
4

F
IR

E
A
R
M

 -
 S

IG
 S

A
U

E
R
 P

3
2
0
 -

 S
/
N

 5
8
A
1
3
4
0
7
1

$
4
5
0
.0

0

F
A

1
2
/
1
4
/
2
0
2
0

2
0
2
0
-0

9
7
/
2
0
2
0
-C

R
-1

6
4
/
 

M
N

-2
0
2
0
-C

V
-0

0
0
0
5
5

F
IR

E
A
R
M

 -
 S

IG
 S

A
U

E
R
 P

3
2
0
 -

 S
/
N

 5
8
A
1
3
4
0
7
1

$
0
.0

0

A
S
S
E
T

1
2
/
1
4
/
2
0
2
0

2
0
2
0
-0

9
7
/
2
0
2
0
-C

R
-1

6
4
/
 

M
N

-2
0
2
0
-C

V
-0

0
0
0
5
5

F
IR

E
A
R
M

 -
 S

IG
 S

A
U

E
R
 P

3
2
0
 -

 S
/
N

 5
8
A
1
3
4
0
7
1

-$
4
5
0
.0

0

P
P
S

0
7
/
1
8
/
2
0
2
2

2
0
2
2
-0

5
0

2
0
1
0
 T

O
Y
O

T
A
 C

O
R
O

L
L
A
 -

 2
T
1
B
U

4
E
E
8
A
C
5
0
4
6
8
3

$
2
,5

0
0
.0

0

F
A

1
2
/
2
9
/
2
0
2
2

2
0
2
2
-0

5
0
/
M

N
-2

0
2
2
-C

R
-

0
0
0
1
2
5
,1

2
6
/
M

N
-2

0
2
2
-C

V
-

2
0
1
0
 T

O
Y
O

T
A
 C

O
R
O

L
L
A
 -

 2
T
1
B
U

4
E
E
8
A
C
5
0
4
6
8
3

$
0
.0

0

A
S
S
E
T

1
2
/
2
9
/
2
0
2
2

2
0
2
2
-0

5
0
/
M

N
-2

0
2
2
-C

R
-

0
0
0
1
2
5
,1

2
6
/
M

N
-2

0
2
2
-C

V
-

2
0
1
0
 T

O
Y
O

T
A
 C

O
R
O

L
L
A
 -

 2
T
1
B
U

4
E
E
8
A
C
5
0
4
6
8
3

-$
2
,5

0
0
.0

0

P
P
S

1
1
/
0
5
/
2
0
2
3

2
0
2
3
-0

6
7
/
M

N
-2

0
2
3
-C

R
-

0
0
0
/
M

N
-2

0
2
3
-C

V
-3

0
0
0
0
7

2
0
0
9
 S

A
T
U

R
N

 O
U

T
L
O

O
K
 -

 5
G

Z
E
R
1
3
D

4
9
J
1
3
6
4
7
5

$
2
,8

0
0
.0

0

T
o
ta

ls
T

ra
n
sa

c
ti

o
n
 c

o
u
n
t:

 8
$
2
,8

0
0
.0

0

P
P
S
 -

 P
h
y
si

c
a
l 
P
ro

p
e
rt

y
 S

e
iz

e
d
 P

e
n
d
in

g
 F

o
rf

e
it

u
re

F
A
 -

 F
o
rf

e
it

u
re

 A
w

a
rd

e
d

(A
d
d
e
n
d
u
m

 A
)

P
ag

e 
5 

of
 8

D
at

e 
of

 R
ep

or
t:

 0
1/

24
/2

02
4



H
il

ls
b

or
o

 P
o

li
ce

 D
ep

ar
tm

en
t 

A
ss

et
 F

or
fe

it
u

re

P
h

y
si

ca
l 

P
ro

p
er

ty
 F

or
fe

it
ed

L
E

G
E

N
D

C
U

R
R

E
N

T
 B

A
L

A
N

C
E

D
S
T
D

 -
 P

ro
p
e
rt

y
 D

e
st

ro
y
e
d

$
2
,9

5
0
.0

0
S
O

L
D

 -
 A

ss
e
t 

S
o
ld

C
O

D
E

D
A
T
E

C
A
S
E

D
E
S
C
R
IP

T
IO

N
 O

F
 P

R
O

P
E
R
T
Y

E
S
T
. 

P
R
O

P
E
R
T
Y
 V

A
L
U

E

--
--

-
1
2
/
0
9
/
2
0
2
0

A
c
c
o
u
n
t 

O
p
e
n
e
d

S
L
E
 T

ru
st

 F
u
n
d
 O

p
e
n
e
d
 b

y
 C

it
y
 C

le
rk

$
0
.0

0

A
S
S
E
T

1
2
/
1
4
/
2
0
2
0

2
0
2
0
-0

9
7
/
2
0
2
0
-C

R
-1

6
4
/
 

M
N

-2
0
2
0
-C

V
-0

0
0
0
5
5

F
IR

E
A
R
M

 -
 S

IG
 S

A
U

E
R
 P

3
2
0
 -

 S
/
N

 5
8
A
1
3
4
0
7
1

$
4
5
0
.0

0

A
S
S
E
T

1
2
/
2
9
/
2
0
2
2

2
0
2
2
-0

5
0
/
M

N
-2

0
2
2
-C

R
-

0
0
0
1
2
5
,1

2
6
/
M

N
-2

0
2
2
-C

V
-

2
0
1
0
 T

O
Y
O

T
A
 C

O
R
O

L
L
A
 -

 2
T
1
B
U

4
E
E
8
A
C
5
0
4
6
8
3

$
2
,5

0
0
.0

0

T
o
ta

ls
T

ra
n
sa

c
ti

o
n
 c

o
u
n
t:

 3
$
2
,9

5
0
.0

0

A
S
S
E
T
 -

 T
ra

n
sf

e
rr

e
d
 t

o
 D

e
p
a
rt

m
e
n
t 

U
se

O
J
 -

 T
ra

n
sf

e
rr

e
d
 t

o
 O

J

(A
d
d
e
n
d
u
m

 A
)

P
ag

e 
6 

of
 8

D
at

e 
of

 R
ep

or
t:

 0
1/

24
/2

02
4



H
il

ls
b

or
o 

P
ol

ic
e 

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t 

A
ss

et
 F

or
fe

it
u

re

D
ru

g 
T

ax
 A

ss
es

sm
en

ts
/P

ro
ce

ed
s

L
E

G
E

N
D

C
U

R
R

E
N

T
 B

A
L

A
N

C
E

$
4
7
7
.9

0

C
H

E
C
K
/

C
O

D
E

D
A
T
E

D
E
S
C
R
IP

T
IO

N
A
S
S
E
S
S
M

E
N

T
D

E
D

U
C
T
IO

N
S

P
A
Y
M

E
N

T
S

W
IT

H
D

R
A
W

A
L

R
E
M

A
IN

IN
G

 

A
S
S
E
S
S
M

E
N

T

--
--

-
1
2
/
0
9
/
2
0
2
0

S
L
E
 T

ru
st

 F
u
n
d
 O

p
e
n
e
d
 b

y
 C

it
y
 C

le
rk

$
0
.0

0
$
0
.0

0
$
0
.0

0

T
A
X

0
7
/
2
1
/
2
0
2
2

2
0
2
2
-0

5
0
 -

 A
ss

e
ss

m
e
n
t 

o
n
 1

1
7
g
m

$
4
6
,8

0
0
.0

0
-$

4
6
,8

0
0
.0

0

S
S
A

0
7
/
2
1
/
2
0
2
2

2
0
2
2
-0

5
0
 -

 2
5
%
 o

f 
A
ss

e
ss

m
e
n
t 

to
 S

ta
te

$
1
1
,7

0
0
.0

0
-$

3
5
,1

0
0
.0

0

A
S
O

J
0
7
/
2
1
/
2
0
2
2

2
0
2
2
-0

5
0
 -

 1
0
%
 S

h
a
re

 t
o
 M

N
C
O

 S
O

$
3
,5

1
0
.0

0
-$

3
1
,5

9
0
.0

0

T
A
X

0
9
/
2
7
/
2
0
2
2

2
0
2
2
-0

3
5
 -

 A
ss

e
ss

m
e
n
t 

o
n
 7

g
m

$
2
,8

0
0
.0

0
-$

4
2
,2

2
0
.0

0

S
S
A

0
9
/
2
7
/
2
0
2
2

2
0
2
2
-0

3
5
 -

 2
5
%
 o

f 
A
ss

e
ss

m
e
n
t 

to
 S

ta
te

$
7
0
0
.0

0
-$

4
1
,5

2
0
.0

0

A
S
O

J
0
9
/
2
7
/
2
0
2
2

2
0
2
2
-0

3
5
 -

 1
0
%
 S

h
a
re

 t
o
 M

N
C
O

 S
O

$
2
1
0
.0

0
-$

4
1
,3

1
0
.0

0

T
A
X

1
0
/
0
3
/
2
0
2
2

2
0
2
2
-0

7
3
 -

 A
ss

e
ss

m
e
n
t 

o
n
 2

8
g
m

$
1
1
,2

0
0
.0

0
-$

5
2
,5

1
0
.0

0

S
S
A

1
0
/
0
3
/
2
0
2
2

2
0
2
2
-0

7
3
 -

 2
5
%
 o

f 
A
ss

e
ss

m
e
n
t 

to
 S

ta
te

$
2
,8

0
0
.0

0
-$

4
9
,7

1
0
.0

0

A
S
O

J
1
0
/
0
3
/
2
0
2
2

2
0
2
2
-0

7
3
 -

 1
0
%
 o

f 
A
g
e
n
c
y
 S

h
a
re

 t
o
 

M
N

C
O

 S
O

$
8
4
0
.0

0
-$

4
8
,8

7
0
.0

0

P
Y
M

T
1
0
/
0
7
/
2
0
2
3

2
0
2
2
-0

7
3
 -

 P
a
y
m

e
n
t 

re
c
e
iv

e
d
 f

ro
m

 

S
ta

te
$
4
7
7
.9

0
-$

3
7
,2

7
0
.0

0

T
o
ta

ls
$
6
0
,8

0
0
.0

0
$
1
9
,7

6
0
.0

0
$
4
7
7
.9

0
$
0
.0

0
$
4
7
7
.9

0

T
A
X
 -

 A
B
C
 T

a
x
 A

ss
e
ss

e
d

A
S
O

J
 =

 A
ss

e
t 

S
h
a
ri

n
g
 O

J

P
Y
M

T
 -

 P
a
y
m

e
n
t 

re
c
e
iv

e
d
 f

ro
m

 S
ta

te

S
S
A
 =

 S
ta

te
 S

h
a
re

 o
f 

A
ss

e
ss

m
e
n
ts

(A
d
d
e
n
d
u
m

 A
)

P
ag

e 
7 

o
f 

8
D

at
e 

o
f 

R
ep

o
rt

: 0
1/

24
/2

02
4



H
il

ls
b

or
o

 P
o

li
ce

 D
ep

ar
tm

en
t 

A
ss

et
 F

or
fe

it
u

re

F
ed

er
al

 F
or

fe
it

u
re

 P
ro

ce
ed

s
L

E
G

E
N

D
C

U
R

R
E

N
T

 B
A

L
A

N
C

E

$
0
.0

0

C
H

E
C
K
/

C
O

D
E

D
A
T
E

T
R
A
N

S
A
C
T
IO

N
D

E
S
C
R
IP

T
IO

N
W

IT
H

D
R
A
W

A
L

D
E
P
O

S
IT

B
A
L
A
N

C
E

--
--

-
1
2
/
0
9
/
2
0
2
0

A
c
c
o
u
n
t 

O
p
e
n
e
d

S
L
E
 T

ru
st

 F
u
n
d
 O

p
e
n
e
d
 b

y
 C

it
y
 C

le
rk

$
0
.0

0
$
0
.0

0
$
0
.0

0

$
0
.0

0

$
0
.0

0

$
0
.0

0

$
0
.0

0

$
0
.0

0

$
0
.0

0

$
0
.0

0

$
0
.0

0

$
0
.0

0

$
0
.0

0

$
0
.0

0

$
0
.0

0

$
0
.0

0

T
o
ta

ls
T

ra
n
sa

c
ti

o
n
 c

o
u
n
t:

 1
$
0
.0

0
$
0
.0

0
$
0
.0

0

F
F
D

 =
 F

e
d
e
ra

l 
F
o
rf

e
it

u
re

 D
e
p
o
si

t

(A
d
d
e
n
d
u
m

 A
)

P
ag

e 
8 

of
 8

D
at

e 
of

 R
ep

or
t:

 0
1/

24
/2

02
4



Addendum B



Addendum B



National FFA Organization |  6060 FFA Drive  | Indianapolis, IN 46278-1370
317-802-6060  | 888-332-2668  | FFA.org

Whereas, FFA and agricultural education provide a strong foundation 
for the youth of America and the future of food, fiber, and natural  
resources systems; and

Whereas, FFA promotes premier leadership, personal growth and  
career success among its members; and

Whereas, agricultural education and FFA ensure a steady supply of 
young professionals to meet the growing needs in the science, business, 
and technology of agriculture; and

Whereas, the FFA motto — “Learning to Do, Doing to Learn, Earning to 
Live, Living to Serve” — gives direction and purpose to these students 
who take an active role in succeeding in agricultural education; and

Whereas, FFA promotes citizenship, volunteerism, patriotism and  
cooperation.

Therefore, I do hereby designate the week of Feb. 17-24, 2024, as  
National FFA Week.

P R O C L A M A T I O N

SIGNATURE DATE



Page 1 of 1 

 

Staff Report 
To: Honorable Mayor and City Council 

From: Matt Stiles, City Administrator 

Date: February 20, 2024 

Re: Ordinance 1383 Zoning Change for 501 S Washington 

Background: The Planning Commission held a public hearing on Thursday, January 25 for a 
requested zoning change at 501 S Main by owners L&H Properties. The property was 
previously the Leppkee Auction building and is currently zoned as C-S Highway Service District. 
The requested zone change is for a more restrictive R-2 Two Family Dwelling so the building 
could be converted into rental housing.  

At the public hearing, Avery Unruh, the neighbor to the south, expressed concerns about the 
property and its ownership. There have been issues with the sump drainage, trees on the 
property, and the potential impact of it becoming residential. The majority of the issues are 
disputes between landowners outside of city’s jurisdiction or code enforcement items that can 
be addressed, but don’t impact the underlying zoning. Zoning to a more restrictive use often 
lowers the impact on neighbors at least in comparison to what could be in that building if it were 
to remain C-S. Mr. Unruh’s comments were taken under consideration of Planning Commission 
and issues were referred to code enforcement where appropriate.  

After the public hearing and deliberations, the Planning Commission voted unanimously to 
recommend the zoning change from C-S to R-2 to the City Council. Ordinance 1383 would 
make the zoning change for the property. 

Financial Impact: NA  

Recommendation: The Planning Commission recommends adoption of Ordinance 1383, and 
staff concurs with that recommendation.  















Page 1 of 2 

 

Staff Report 
To: Honorable Mayor and City Council 

From: Matt Stiles, City Administrator 

Date: February 20, 2024 

Re: Contract Mowing 

Background: The City Council authorized the letting of bids for four contract mowing areas and 
to allow for negotiation with a pervious contractor, Plenert Mowing Services, for areas that were 
not competitively bid in the past. The bids were announced at the council meeting and posted to 
the city’s website. Previous bidders were contacted and made aware of the bid process. Bids 
were due to the city on February 14, 2024 at 5:00 PM. We received one bid from Plenert 
Mowing.  

For comparison, the winning bids for 2023 are listed with the proposed bids for 2024. The 
differences between years are minimal, leading me to feel that the prices presented are 
competitive.  
Location 2023 Bid 2024 Bid 
Area 1: Hillsboro Heights  $650 per month $640 per month 
Area 2: AMPI / Police Station $250 per month $275 per month 
Area 3: Downtown $150 per month $160 per month 
Area 4: Willow Glen & Old Hospital $420 per month $400 per month 

The proposed landscape services agreement with Plenert Mowing also lists the negotiated 
areas. Those areas include: the Schaeffler House, Community Plaza / Splash Pad, Memorial 
Park, Museum, Fairgrounds, Rodeo Arena, and outside area of the pool. The Schaeffler House, 
Memorial Park, and Community Plaza are irrigated and require more service. In total the 
negotiated property is roughly 24 acres of high profile areas.  

Last year with the transition of Rec Directors, we had Plenert Mowing provide service to 
Memorial Park, the Community Plaza, the Museum, Fairgrounds, Rodeo Arena and pool 
starting in July. Looking at potential shortage of quality labor this year, keeping those areas 
contracted rather than in house makes sense, especially given the frequency of mowing and the 
amount of trimming required.  

Financial Impact: The total anticipated cost of the proposed mowing agreement is $44,725 for 
the year. That may vary depending on the frequency of mowing in some areas. For comparison 
we paid $31,786 for all our contracted mowing last year. The difference is a result of some of 
the areas only being mowed starting in July. The totals would have been nearly identical had 
those areas been maintained for a full season.  



Page 2 of 2 

 

While that seems like a lot, to have the same number of dedicated mowing and trimming hours 
done by city staff would require at least one additional full time dedicated mower and likely 
some part-time assistance. Considering the wages and benefits for the labor and the additional 
equipment and fuel costs, the city is benefiting from a contracting arrangement. It is also 
important to note that contracted mowing represents less than 20% of the areas we must 
maintain.  

Recommendation: Staff recommends approval of the contract with Plenert Mowing and 
Outdoor Service.  



Page 1 of 5 
 

SERVICES AGREEMENT 
 
 THIS SERVICES AGREEMENT (“Agreement”) is made and entered into this 20th day of February, 
2024 (“Effective Date”) by and between the City of Hillsboro, Kansas (“City”) and Plenert Mowing and 
Outdoor Service ("Contractor").  
 

WHEREAS, Contractor is in the business of providing landscaping services; 
 
WHEREAS, the parties hereto have agreed that Contractor shall provide landscaping services, all for 

the consideration, and upon the terms, provisions, and conditions hereinafter set forth.  
 
NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the promises, covenants, and agreements herein contained, 

the parties agree as follows: 
 

1. Landscaping. City hereby hires Contractor to provide landscaping services at the properties 
in listed in Exhibit A. Contractor agrees to provide such services pursuant to this Agreement.  
 

a. Contractor will perform landscaping maintenance commencing on April 1, 2024, and ending 
on October 31, 2024, maintaining the area to class standards for each provided in the bid 
specifications. For the Schaeffler House and Community Plaza landscaping maintenance shall 
commence March 15, 2024 ending on November 15, 2024. 

 
b. The landscaping maintenance will include: (i) cutting of all grass areas; (ii) edging of all 

walkways and shrub borders; and (iii) cleaning of walkways, following servicing of the 
landscaped areas (hereinafter the “Services”). Contractor will also use chemical applications 
in agreed upon areas. 

 
c. Per Contractor’s bid for exterior care package services for the Schaeffler House, the 

Contractor shall (i) cut of all grass areas; (ii) edge of all walkways and shrub borders; (iii) 
cleaning of walkways, following servicing of the landscaped areas; (iv) landscape bed 
maintenance; (v) weed spraying; and (vi) bush trimming. 

 
d. Contractor shall supply all labor, supplies, tools, equipment, trucks, and all other things to 

be used, directly or indirectly, in the performance of or in connection with the Services and 
shall perform and complete said work in a good and workmanlike manner, diligently, 
satisfactorily and acceptable to the City. 

 
e. If in the judgement of the City, Contractor fails to provide the Services in accordance with the 

terms of this Agreement, abandons said work, or for any reason suspends or refuses to 
continue it for a period of seven (7) days, City shall have the right to take over said work or 
cause the same to be completed.   

 
2. Compensation.  Contractor shall receive from the City as payment for the Services 

performed under this Agreement, the amounts listed in Exhibit B.  
 
3. Insurance. Contractors shall, at all times, keep in full force and effect comprehensive general 

liability insurance and workers’ compensation insurance or the required workers’ compensation waiver. The 
Contractor shall not be considered covered under the City’s workers’ compensation insurance. All insurance 
coverage shall be satisfactory to the City as to the amount and insurers and shall be for the protection of the 
Contractor and the City against claims which may or could arise through the performance of this Agreement. 
Contractor shall furnish City with a certificate from its insurance carrier or carriers, prior to the effective date 



Page 2 of 5 
 

of this Agreement, showing its compliance with the foregoing insurance requirements. Failure to maintain and 
provide the City with evidence of the required liability insurance shall be a breach of this Agreement.  
 

4. Independent Contractor. Contractor shall for all purposes be deemed an independent 
contractor. 
 

5. Indemnification. Contractor shall indemnify, defend, and hold City harmless from any and 
all claims, suits, costs of defense, damages, judgments, costs, expenses, liabilities, obligations and causes of 
action arising out of, or in any way connected with this Agreement, including, but not limited to, for injury 
to, or death of any person, or from damage to or destruction of property, sustained or alleged to have been 
sustained in connection with the Services, or to have arisen out of the performance of this Agreement by the 
Contractor, a subcontractor, if any, or the employees of either.  The Contractor shall at its own expense 
defend any suit or action brought against the City and shall pay all damages, costs and expenses including 
attorneys' fees incurred in connection therewith. The Contractor shall give the City reasonable notice of any 
such claims or actions of which Contractor become aware. The provisions of this Section shall survive the 
expiration or early termination of this Agreement. 
 

6. Termination of Agreement. This Agreement shall be in effect from the Effective Date until 
October 31, 2023. Notwithstanding the foregoing, the City may terminate this Agreement for any reason, or 
for no reason, upon giving the Contractor at least fifteen (15) days’ prior written notice.  
 

7. Notices. All communications, notices, and demands of any kind which either party may be 
required or desire to give to or serve upon the other party shall be made in writing, and shall be delivered by 
hand-delivery, or sent by certified mail, return receipt requested, to the following addressee: 

 
To City: City of Hillsboro, Kansas 
               Attention: Matt Stiles 
               118 E. Grand Avenue 
               Hillsboro, Kansas 67063 

To Contractor: Plenert Mowing & Outdoor Service 
Attention: Josh Plenert 
306 N Ash Street 
Hillsboro, Kansas 67063 

  
 

8. Headings. The paragraph headings herein are for convenience only and shall not affect the 
construction of this Agreement. 

 
9. Severability. If any provision of this Agreement is held to be illegal, invalid, or 

unenforceable under present or future laws, such provision shall be fully severable, this Agreement shall be 
construed and enforced as if such illegal, invalid or unenforceable provision had never comprised a part of 
this Agreement and the remaining provisions of this Agreement shall remain in full force and effect and 
shall not be affected by the illegal, invalid, or unenforceable provision or by its severance from this 
Agreement. 

 
10. Benefit of the Agreement. This Agreement shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit 

of and be enforceable by the parties hereto, their respective successors and assigns.  No other person or 
entity shall be entitled to claim any right or benefit hereunder, including, without limitation, the status of a 
third-party beneficiary of this Agreement.  

 
11. Entire Agreement. This Agreement constitutes the entire agreement and understanding 

among the parties relating to the subject matter hereof and supersedes all prior proposals, negotiations, 
agreements, and understandings relating to such subject matter. There are no other agreements, 
representations, or warranties not set forth herein. 

 



Page 3 of 5 
 

12. Governing Law. This Agreement shall be governed under the laws of the State of Kansas. 
 
13. Counterparts. This Agreement may be executed in counterparts, each of which shall be 

an original and all of which shall constitute but one and the same agreement. 
 
14. Interpretation. It is agreed that this Agreement shall be construed in accordance with its 

plain meaning, and not strictly for or against any party by virtue of the drafting of this Agreement.  
 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have executed this Agreement.  

      CITY OF HILLSBORO, KANSAS 
 
 
              
       Lou Thurston, Mayor 
 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
 
        
Danielle Bartel, City Clerk 
 
 
 
 
 
       
 
“CONTRACTOR”  
 
 
By        
Josh Plenert, Plenert Mowing & Outdoor Services 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Page 4 of 5 
 

EXHIBIT A 
Property to be maintained 

 
 

MONTHLY RATE PROPERTY COMPETITIVELY BID 
Hillsboro Heights, 7 acres (Class 4)  AMPI / Police Station, 1.79 acres (Class 3) 
Downtown Area, .79 acres (Class 3) Willow Glen, 1.14 acres (Class 4) 
Old Hospital, .66 acres (Class 3)  

 
 

 
PER SERVICE PROPERTY NEGOTIATED  
Schaeffler House, weekly mow, trim, cleanup including edging walkways, landscape maintenance, 
weed spraying, bush trimming, and leaf cleanup 
Splash Park / Community Plaza, weekly mow, trim, cleanup 
City Pool, weekly mow, trim, cleanup 
Memorial Park, weekly mow, trim, cleanup 
Museum Complex, 3x monthly mow, trim, cleanup 
Fairgrounds and Rodeo Arena, 2x monthly mow, trim, cleanup 

 
 

AREAS TO BE SPRAYED 
Chain link fence of fairgrounds, pool and rodeo arena 
Fair building 
Fairgrounds parking 
Museum parking 
Park bathroom 
Rubber mulch area in play areas in Memorial Park 
Veterans Memorial in Memorial Park 
Memorial Park roadside bumpers 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Page 5 of 5 
 

 
EXHIBIT B 

Cost of property maintenance 
 

Property Cost 
Hillsboro Heights, 7 acres (Class 4)  $640 / Month 
Downtown Area, .79 acres (Class 3) $160 / Month 
Old Hospital, .66 acres (Class 3) / Willow Glen, 1.14 acres (Class 4) $400 / Month 
AMPI / Police Station, 1.79 acres (Class 3) $275 / Month 
Schaeffler House $100 / per service 
Schaeffler House Fertilizer Treatments (2x yearly) $60 / service 
Splash Park / Community Plaza $85 / service 
Splash Park / Community Plaza Fertilizer Treatments (2x yearly) $60 / service 
City Pool $85 / service 
Memorial Park $240 / service 
Museum Complex, Fairgrounds and Rodeo Arena $2,400 / month 
Fairgrounds and Rodeo Arena weed control spraying (2x yearly) $400 / service 

 
 
 

 



 STATEMENT
Hillsboro Ford, Inc.          

202 S Main St  Hillsboro, KS   67063-1532
ph:(620) 947-3134

Customer Account  01/25/2024
 Due On: 02/24/2024

THEC12        THE CITY OF HILLSBORO              
  
 P.O. Box 125                  
 HILLSBORO KS 67063     

  
  
  

________________________________________________________________________________
Doc.   Jn     Date      Desc.                    Chg.       Pmt.         Bal.
________________________________________________________________________________
......   00   12/26/23  Bal. Frw'd.               227.02        .00       227.02
118699   34   01/04/24  Inv 118699 THE CITY       372.19        .00       599.21
61582    30   01/08/24  Invoice 61582              58.26        .00       657.47
61629    30   01/11/24  Invoice 61629             110.80        .00       768.27
61710    30   01/17/24  Invoice 61710              71.34        .00       839.61
61713    30   01/17/24  AZ184861/THE CITY OF      364.92        .00      1204.53
118752   34   01/23/24  Inv 118752 THE CITY       318.79        .00      1523.32
61778    30   01/23/24  THE CITY OF HILLSBOR         .00        .00      1523.32
61778    80   01/24/24  Invoice 61778              67.96        .00      1591.28

 -----------
 Account Balance ... $ 1591.28

 Accumulated Finance Charge .... $ 2.27

 Pay This Amount ... $ 1593.55

________________________________________________________________________________
30 Days:[$     227.02]   60 Days:[$        .00]   90 Days:[$        .00]  120 Days:[$        .00]

FINANCE CHARGES will apply if the new balance is unpaid one month from the closing date of the
statement.  The  'FINANCE CHARGES'  are computed  by a periodic rate of  1.00% per month which
is an ANNUAL  PERCENTAGE  RATE of 12.00% applied to the unpaid balance after deducting current
payments and/or credits appearing on this statement from the previous balance.

















Page 1 of 2 

 

Staff Report 
To: Honorable Mayor and City Council 

From: Matt Stiles, City Administrator 

Date: February 20, 2024 

Re: Credit Card Fee Discussion 

Background: At the last meeting we discussed continuing with the existing process for credit card 
payments or passing the fees on to customers. Unlike private businesses the city could pass 
charges forward like many governmental entities already do. Credit card processing fees were 
$31,005.37 in 2022 and grew to $34,176.76 in 2023. To further that discussion, Danielle pulled 
more information on how payments broke down in 2023. The attached table provides a breakdown 
of one month in each quarter. The months chosen reflect low, medium, and high levels of 
transactions and revenue. The types of transactions and the total dollar amounts are listed along 
with the credit fees for that month. As a percentage, 58% of our customers utilize a payment 
method that passes through our credit card processor.  

Financial Impact: As previously mentioned, our processor has a series of charges it applies to our 
transactions based on the type. Looking at the transactions as a percentage, we pay somewhere 
between 1-2% for processing transactions. Because we absorb those fees, the costs are less than 
what our customers would pay if we opted to pass the processing fee on.  

Recommendation / Discussion: Looking at issues there are arguments for both sides. Absorbing 
the processing fees means that all customers are paying for a convenience that 58% of customers 
utilize. There is a fairness argument. Those fees are significant in dollars. Having an additional 
$34,000 for utilities would be great for operations.    

The other side of the argument is that, as a percentage, fees are relatively low compared to total 
revenue. Customers would pay more if the fees were passed on directly. The addition of our online 
payment portal has been widely adopted by our customers, which has noticeably reduced the 
number of in person cash and check payments.  That reduction in payments has allowed us to 
continue with fewer staff in the front office. Also, credit card payments effectively guarantee that we 
are paid for those accounts using it. More check payments would presumably result in more NSF 
issues and trying to track down payments. 

Another thing to consider is the amount of time and effort needed to educate our customers on the 
fees. Frankly, fees are aggravating to customers because they are paying more than they used to 
and it slows down the payment process if staff explain fees. The credit card processor collects that 
fees, meaning no direct revenue comes to the city, only the cost is avoided. Considering the 
nonmonetary costs and widely adopted use of payment types utilizing the processor, there is a 
strong argument to continue absorbing the cost.  



2 

Raising all the utility rates to make up the fees would be a possibility, but significantly more worked 
would be needed to determine the rates due to the ratio of charges (Electric is usually a higher 
percentage of a bill compared to water, sewer, or trash). If that was a route the council wanted to 
consider we would advise doing that as part of the regular utility rate review process in November.   



MONTHLY SUMMARY OF ALL PAYMENTS
2023 BY PAYMENT TYPE

# TRANS AMOUNT # TRANS AMOUNT # TRANS AMOUNT # TRANS AMOUNT

CASH 80                13,366.49           90                13,878.98           92                18,549.98           71                7,484.90             
CHECK 502             220,034.96         463             245,824.17         453             273,985.10         516             275,713.81         

CREDIT CARD 146             27,532.60           142             27,833.45           158             42,471.16           154             26,602.13           
ELECTRONIC FUND TRANSFER 2                  616.51                 1                  465.85                 1                  498.91                 1                  512.44                 
FRONT DESK PAYMENT  (CC) 231             62,702.26           248             67,458.56           241             111,661.36         256             63,394.73           
AUTOPAY (CREDIT CARD) 140             26,042.28           136             27,929.93           142             45,550.44           136             25,756.03           
FRONT DESK ECHECK 58                13,237.71           52                14,152.05           59                23,515.85           56                13,786.17           
AUTOPAY (ECHECK) 183             107,130.71         183             126,447.54         189             182,033.56         189             117,657.32         
    TOTAL CALC 1,342          470,663.52$       1,315          523,990.53$       1,335          698,266.36$       1,379          530,907.53$       

CREDIT CARD FEES PER MONTH 2,642.45$           2,389.02$           3,073.32$           3,247.47$           

03/01 - 03/31 06/01 - 06/30 09/01 - 09/30 12/01 - 12/31



Page 1 of 1 

 

Staff Report 
To: Honorable Mayor and City Council 

From: Matt Stiles, City Administrator 

Date: February 20, 2024 

Re: Municipal Policy 70 

Background: Staff have been working through our municipal policies looking at amendments to 
reflect the actual practices, needed changes, or recommendations to modernize the policies. 
There are 101 municipal policies, so this will be an ongoing process. We are addressing the 
more widely applicable policies first.  

Municipal Policy 70 pertains to aquatic center admissions. The policy is generally out of date 
compared to how the pool has been run in the last 10 years. We have more categories of 
passes than is reflected in the policy. The pool party policy needs to be fleshed out more 
including language on how and when those are booked. The language needed will be 
developed and revised for consideration. 

An issue staff are seeking guidance on is pool pass rates for employees. During last year’s 
discussion of discounting golf membership rates employees, it was brought up that pool passes 
rates should be considered as well. At the time we didn’t make that adjustment, but as pool 
season approaches now would be the time. For reference, the Council chose to provide a 50% 
discount on annual membership fees at the golf course for full-time and part-time employees as 
well as volunteer firefighters.  

Financial Impact: There are currently four types of annual passes available at the pool: Family 
pass, $210; Single pass, $110; Lap Swim pass, $75; and Caregiver pass, $40. Assuming the 
same 50% discount, the maximum discount would be $105. For reference a family annual golf 
membership is $495 resulting in a discount of $247.50. 

Looking at last year’s passes it appears this policy change would impact 10 people with a range 
of pass types. More employees might sign up with the discounted rate, but a conservative 
estimate would be $1,100 in uncollected revenue. The pool is budgeted to generate $43,000 in 
2024.  

Recommendation: Staff is seeking direction on whether to include an employee discount on 
the pool annual passes in the policy revisions. Regardless of the decision, staff will provide 
some amended language for Policy 70 for the council to consider at the next meeting. 



70. Aquatic Center Admission Policy 

OBJECTIVE 

To clarify the process of admitting patrons/groups to the Hillsboro Family Aquatic Center. 

POLICY 

1.    General Admission Rule 

       Every person who enters the facility must pay the admission fee. 

2.    Daily Admission 

       Options for admission include a single day admission or a discount package of 10 admissions; 
season passes will no longer be available. 

3.    Large Group Discount 

       Large groups shall be charged at a discounted rate per person. The discounted rate shall be 
$0.50 less than regular admission. 

4.    Usage fee for USD 410 

       The school district shall pay a flat usage fee per class period. 

5.    Refunds/Rain checks 

       No refunds shall be given should the pool be cleared or the facility close due to inclement 
weather. If the facility closes, rain checks good for one daily admission shall be given out 
upon request. 

  
 



Page 1 of 1 

 

Staff Report 
To: Honorable Mayor and City Council 

From: Matt Stiles, City Administrator 

Date: February 20, 2024 

Re: Municipal Policy 93 

Background: Staff have been working through our municipal policies looking at amendments to 
reflect the actual practices, needed changes, or recommendations to modernize the policies. 
There are 101 municipal policies, so this will be an ongoing process. We are addressing the 
more widely applicable policies first.  

Municipal Policy 93 pertains to the utility disconnection process changed in 2021. An attached 
revised draft shows suggested changes. The current policy language doesn’t match the 
timeframes that we have found to be more effective and safer for staff while still providing ample 
time to pay or making a payment agreement. 

The proposed policy also reallocates the $50 reconnection fee to be split between delivery of 
the red letter and restoration of service. Before 2021 there was a delivery fee for the letter, but it 
never seemed sufficient to get customers attention. The policy change does not raise the total 
fee but creates an incentive to avoid getting a red letter. We have a lot of habitually late 
customers who use the letter as a reminder, ignoring the two other notifications they receive. 
Delivering 20-30 red letters takes a lot of staff time, so reducing that allows us to focus on other 
things. Making the proposed fee change would require an ordinance.  

Financial Impact: The timeframe changes are to match what we have found to be good 
practice. The fee reallocation is designed to create incentives to avoid being late. It may cause 
more customers to pay an otherwise avoidable penalty that is not charged now. The hope is that 
reduces the number of red letters delivered monthly ultimately saving everyone time and 
money.  

Recommendation: Staff is seeking direction on the proposed changes. As mentioned, an 
ordinance would be needed to re-align the fee structure.  



CITY OF HILLSBORO 

MUNICIPAL POLICY STATEMENT 

Policy No. 93 

Subject: Electrical Service Disconnection Policy 

Effective Date: September 7, 2021 March 1, 2024 

 

The Code of the City of Hillsboro, Kansas provides for the termination of electrical service due to failure to 
pay in Chapter 15, Article 2, Section 15-214(a). The City Clerk or designee provide delinquency notices after 
the due date for payment on 15th of each month. After the required minimum 10 days between 
delinquency and termination.  

Henceforth electrical service disconnections will be handled in the following way.  

• Delinquency notices will be mailed on or after the 16th of each month. If the 15th lands on a 
weekend or holiday, notices will be sent on the next business day following the 15th. 

• Service termination letters will be delivered on the final Monday of the month between 1PM-2PM, 
assuming that the final Monday of the month is no less than 10 days past the 15th of the month. In 
the event that the final Monday is not 10 days past the 15th, service termination letters will be 
delivered on the 10th day following the 15th. the following Monday. 

• Termination letters will be printed on brightly colored letterhead paper from the city signed by the 
City Administrator or official designee. There will no longer be a charge for delivery of these letters. 
Residents will be charged $25 for delivery of the red letter, which will be assessed at 1pm on the 
day of delivery. 

• Termination letters will be delivered on the final Monday in the afternoon between 1PM and 4PM. 
• Customers receiving the termination letters will have until 1PM 3PM the following day to pay their 

outstanding bill and any applicable charges or arrange for a payment plan. 
• Customers who that fail to pay their outstanding charges or make a payment plan will have their 

service turned off at 1PM. between 3PM and 4PM. 
• If services are turned off, customers must pay a $25 reconnect fee at City Hall, in addition to all 

outstanding charges, before services are restored. 
• Electrical Utility staff will not restore service to a disconnected customer due to as a result of failure 

of payment after 4PM on shutoff day. Customers making payment after 4pm off at that time will be 
restored the next business day during regular business hours.  

• Electrical utility staff will not collect payments in the field. All payments must be made at City Hall.  

This policy will go into effect on the first full billing cycle following adoption. The governing body of the City 
of Hillsboro agreed by motion at the February 20, 2024 regular meeting to approve the policy statement. 

 

Approved: _________________________________________  ____________________ 

Lou Thurston, Mayor Date 



Staff Report 
To: Honorable Mayor and City Council 

From: Matt Stiles, City Administrator 

Date: February 20, 2024 

Re: 2023 Year in Review 

Each year we review what actions the City Council has done for the year and look at what has 
happened in the community. Council actions are broken down into each month of the year below.  

External funding was a key part of 2023 as we were able to make significant progress on some key 
strategic priorities. The received over $2.4 million in grants, forgivable loans, and outside funding in 
2023. Those funds helped with water treatment, childcare, assisting local businesses, purchasing 
equipment, and improving the community through projects like the downtown mural. A huge 
accomplishment was the completion of phase 1 of the community plaza. Nearly every city employee 
had a hand in the completion of the project. Once it was completed it was used extensively by the 
community last summer. The project itself was primarily funded by private donations and federal 
funding from ARPA. 

The Hillsboro Childcare Center had an outstanding year. The board met their fundraising goal of $2.2 
million with the assistance of a $600,000 CDBG sponsored by the City. The donation of the Trinity 
Mennonite Church in April gave the center a home. Childcare is Tier 1 strategic priority for the city and 
broad based community partnership. Once completed in late 2024-early 2025 the center will fill a 
large void in Marion County with room to expand as needed.  

With all the successes of 2023, there were challenges the community faced. Inflation and supply 
chain issues that dominated 2022 persisted into 2023. By the end of the year many of the issues in 
acquisition were resolved, but inflation has kept prices higher than when the COVID-19 pandemic 
started. Several businesses closed in 2023 including the Building Center, the Pickup Line, Mama C’s, 
and the Herrington Hospital Clinic.  

Additionally, the community lost two long-time public servants in 2022. Delores Dalke, Mayor for 28 
years, passed away in May. Larry Paine, City Administrator for 13 years, passed away in early June. 
The impact that Delores and Larry had on the community was significant. To honor both of their 
legacies, the Council dedicated the splash park in Larry’s honor and rededicated the pool to honor 
Delores.  

City the scope of city operations can be easy to overlook, however we provide a significant level of 
service through our daily operations. Attached is a table that gives some information about the 
general daily operations of the city.  

 

 



2 

January  

• Welcomed back Brent Driggers and Byron McCarty to the Council for new terms. 
• Discussed and adopted rate changes for the electric utility based on a KPP rate study.  
• Passed Resolution 2023-01 waiving GAAP for the audit. 
• Approved moving forward with an official action dedicating a parking spot for Kathy’s Floral 

based on safety concerns. 
• Entered into an MOU with the Senior Center to provide $10,000 in support to the center for 

programs and the meals program. 
• Entered into an MOU with Infinity Fitness to allow employees to have membership via 

payroll deduction, as described in Municipal Policy 98. 
• Approved the annual Land Bank budget and reviewed Land Bank Properties. 

February 

• Received an annual department head report from Doug Sisk in Recreation. 
• Approved the first round of sewer lining projects and lining cleaning and cameraing with 

Johnson Service in response to a KDHE order.  
• Selected AG360 as the city’s property and liability insurance agent for a two year period. 
• Let bids for contract mowing. 
• Discussed the need to create a sump pump amnesty program to address rainwater 

infiltration into the sanitary sewer system. 
• Addressed the roof at 101 S Main and determined to move forward with repairs based on 

approved code enforcement action. 
• Heard a report from Dr David Janzen from Tabor about progress of the CKEC. 
• Adopted Ordinance 1363 allowing Parkside Home to amend its Industrial Revenue Bond 

agreement to sell an unused portion of farm ground on the south of their property. 
• Adopted Ordinance 1364 allowing for the designation of downtown parking spots. 
• Passed Resolution 2023-02 designating a parking spot for Kathy’s Floral. 
• Approved a generator service agreement with Foley Equipment to service city generators. 
• Narrowed down the annual equipment needs to determine what equipment would be 

replaced in 2023. 

March 

• Received an annual department head report from Avery Unruh in Golf. 
• Held a public hearing for the CDBG for the childcare center.  
• Passed Resolutions 2023-03 and 2023-04 authorizing the application to CDBG for the 

childcare center. 
• Submitted an application to the spring KDOT matching grant program for Adams. 
• Approved a Cost Share grant application with KDOT for Adams street. We were not 

funded on this round. 
• Approved the purchase a new trash truck, golf sprayer, golf mower, and sewer mower. 

Note we did a special meeting for the sewer mower to redo the bidding. 
• Adopted Ordinance 1365 approving a forgivable loan with KDHE for $1.1 million. 
• Approved the renewal for property and liability insurance with EMC. 
• Sponsored a HEAL grant application for 126 N Main, which was awarded later in the year. 
• Approved giving city employees a 50% discount on annual golf memberships. 
• Hired Krista Richert as the AP/ Payroll Clerk. 

 



3 

April 

• Received the annual department head report from Dale Dalke on Streets. 
• Approved the replacement of the park shelter roofs. 
• Adopted Ordinance 1367 allowing for the keeping of chickens in the city. 
• Adopted Resolution 2023-05 that established a sump pump amnesty program to help 

disconnect sump pumps from the sanitary sewer system. 
• Approved a proposal from Johnson Service for $257,075 to line the first phase of sewer 

lines in the northwest part of the city. 
• Received the 2022 Audited Financial Statements. 
• Held a public hearing on Ordinance 1366 that changed the dog confinement regulations. 

There were no public comments at the hearing. 
• Adopted Ordinance 1366 changing dog confinement regulations 
• Approved the purchase of a chlorine dioxide generator for the KDHE Pilot project at the 

water plant. 
• Adopted Ordinance 1368 authorizing the lease purchase agreement with Central National 

Bank for a trash truck, golf course equipment, the fire brush truck and tandem axle dump 
truck. 

• Approved Municipal Policy 100 altering the meeting room rental policy. 
• Discussed amending the Neighborhood Revitalization program and opted to move 

forward with pursuing a revised program.  
• Gave temporary permission for the Golf Association to host a beer garden at the  

May 

• Darin Neufeld presented an initial draft of the Capital Improvement Plan. 
• Began discussions for the 2025 budget year. 
• Received the annual department head report on the museums from Cara Duell. 
• Approved a fencing variation for the Community Plaza. 
• Approved a proposal to reside and replace windows at the museum visitors center. 
• Approved a proposal from Vogts-Parga to assist with concrete to finish the splash park. 
• Approved a bid to reseal the downtown area streets. 
• Approved a renewal from Blue Cross and Blue Shield for employee health insurance. 
• Sold two lots to Chuck Maltbie for $10,000. 
• Increased pay for part-time police officers to $20.00 per hour. 

June 

• Colin Hansen from KPP provided an update to the council on the KPP business. 
• Adopted Ordinance 1369 changing zoning regulations for fencing and the agricultural 

exemption. 
• Adopted Ordinance 1370 issuing a conditional use permit for 600 Western Heights to 

allow Barkman Honey to use the building as a warehouse. 
• Adopted Ordinance 1371 and 1372 allowing for short term rentals at 208 S Washington 

and 304 S Main Street. 
• Sold the 111 E 1st (old post office) to East Branch Company for $15,000 
• Approved supporting the CDBG application for a commercial rehab at 126 N Main.  
• Accepted a bid from Dalke Construction for the demolition of 311 N Lincoln. 
• Approved the purchase of 2010 tandem axle dump truck.  
• Completed a 360 evaluation of the City Administrator, 



4 

• Gave a one-time 2% merit bonus to employees with positive evaluations. 
• Council dedicated the Splash Park to the memory of Larry Paine and the pool in honor of 

Delores Dalke, both of whom passed within weeks of each other. 
• Reviewed 2023 budget 

July  

• Received a report from Dr. David Janzen on the operations of the CKEC and renewed 
the MOU for the 2023-24 school year with an increase in funding. 

• Terminated the lease agreement for 111 E 1st Street and signed lease agreement for 
space in the old hospital at 701 S Main. 

• Received the annual department head report on the electric department from Todd 
Helmer. 

• Adopted Ordinance 1373 granting a conditional use permit for the community childcare 
center. 

• The Land Bank sold commercial lots to ELCON Properties and Hillsboro Ford and sold a 
residential lot in Willow Glen to Ken and Patti Funk. 

• Purchases a replacement compact tractor and new sports complex mower. 
• Reviewed the 2024 budget proposal and voted to notify the County Clerk of the intent to 

exceed the revenue neutral rate. 
• Adopted Ordinance 1374 authorizing lease-purchase agreements with Central National 

Bank for previously approved equipment. 
• Joined a PFAS cost recovery program with Napoli Shkolnick, PLLC 
• Had discussion about out of town trash rates for customers dropped by Waste 

Connections and also discussed dumpster policy. 

August 

• Accepted the award agreement from CDBG for $600,000 for the childcare center. 
• Approved a revised job description for the Director of Parks and Recreation. 
• Reviewed the 2024 Budget  
• Received the annual department head report on the police department from Jessey 

Hiebert.  
• Adopted Ordinance 1375 setting out of town trash rates. 
• Adopted Municipal Policy 101 regulating the rental of dumpsters. 
• Adopted Ordinance 1376 and 1377 adopting the 2023 STO and UPOC.  
• Authorized the creation of a Municipal Investment Pool account. 
• Approved a proposed roof fix for the AMPI building for $17,400. 
• Declared August 15, Trojan Girls Swimming Lauryn Vogt State Champion Day by 

proclamation. 
• Declared October 1-7, as Public Power Week by proclamation. 
• Determined Mayor Thurston and Councilman Beye would be delegates at the LKM 

Annual Conference.  

September 

• Reviewed the 2024 Budget, held the RNR hearing, held the budget hearing and 
approved the final 2024 budget.  

• Received the annual department head report on the water and sewer from Morgan 
Marler. 



5 

• Received the annual department head report on the pool from Care Duell. 
• Introduced Jerry Mendoza as the new Director of Parks and Recreation. 
• Approved second round of sewer lining from Johnson Services for phase 2 at a cost of 

$186,815. 
• Adopted Resolution 2023-08 to submit a KDOT cost share application for Adams 

Street funding, which would be successful after the 5th try. 
• Adopted Resolution 2023-09 setting a code enforcement hearing for 306 W Grand.  
• Accepted a proposal from Mahaney Roofing for repair of the airport hangar. 
• Accepted a proposal from Networks Plus for managed IT services. 
• Purchased a used food trailer as a concessions trailer for parks and recreation.  
• Approved a proposal for ballistic vests for the PD partially funded with a grant from 

HCF. 
• Purchased asphalt from APAC at a cost not to exceed $15,000. 
• The land bank accepted a donation of the property at 306 W Grand. 
• Discussed a possible move of legal publications to the City website.  

 

October 

• Received the annual department head report on the administration from Danielle 
Bartel. 

• Adopted Resolution 2023-10 designating the city’s website as the official publication for 
city actions. 

• Adopted Ordinance 1378 issuing a conditional use permit for short term rentals at 205 
N Lincoln. 

• Approved the creation of a Custodian position to replace the contract cleaner service. 
• Reviewed the housing needs assessment report prepared by Wichita State University.  
• Held a public hearing on the CDBG Commercial Rehab application for the 126 N Main 

property. Approved an interlocal agreement with TDriggers Investments on the project. 
• Approved an interlocal agreement with Dale’s Supermarket for a HEAL grant 

application. 
• Purchased utility poles at cost of $23,657.34 and an HVAC unit at the raw water pump 

station for $11,555. 
• Approved moving $1.5 million to the Municipal Investment Pool, but did not do so 

because CNB matched the rate locally. 

November  

• Received the annual department head report on the sanitation from David Lockwood. 
• Celebrated the 2023 Girls State Volleyball Championship by Proclamation 
• Adopted resolution 2023-11 taking code enforcement action at 510 S Washington. 
• Agreed to participate in a solar PACE grant project with KPP to install solar panels on 

city property. 
• Purchased water treatment chemicals for $25,168.58. 
• Approved a haying agreement for the airport property. 
• Approved a quote for the repair of Ash and Grand from Hett Construction. 
• Received a presentation from Jana Willams from Flint Hills Regional Council and 

agreed to become members of the FHRC. 
• Adopted Ordinance 1379 and 1380 amending water and sewer rates for 2024 
• Approved an equal adjustment to the Peabody water rate by terms of the contract. 



6 

• Set the budget amendment hearing for December 19. 
• Designated Mayor Thurston as the voting member for the KPP Annual meeting. 
• Approved contract revisions for the City Administrator Contract. 
• Discussed a request from Hillsboro Community Hospital for zoning changes for 

hospitals. 

December 

• Received the annual department head report from FD/ Building Inspection from Ben 
Steketee. 

• Heard a proposal from Byron Adrian from Mennonite Housing for a potential workforce 
housing project. Approved an option agreement with Mennonite Housing for the project. 

• Adopted Ordinance 1381 which revised Ordinance 1374, a lease-purchase agreement.  
• Adopted the 2023 Capital Improvement Plan. 
• Discussed and adopted a 2024 State of Municipal Policy.  
• Held a hearing for the proposed 2023 budget amendments and approved the 

amendments. 
• Approved proposed 2024 COLA for employees. 
• Cancelled outstanding encumbrances for the 2023 budget year.  
• Discussed a fire station meeting with our legislative delegation.  



City Administrator’s Report 
February 20, 2024 
 

Page 1 of 1 
 

 

Father Kapaun Testimony: The Mayor and I provided testimony on SB 413 on February 14. The bill 
would authorize a statue memorializing Father Emil Kapun on Capitol grounds. No tax dollars would be 
used to build the statute. Mayor Lou offered eloquent written testimony and I had the opportunity to 
give less eloquent verbal testimony.  We were joined by Commissioner Davide Mueller in testimony.  

Planning Commission Hearings: The PC will hear five cases on February 29 for Alternative Housing 
overlays to allow container homes. One is a single family home and four are duplexes. The PC expressed 
hesitation on allowing those to move forward without one being completed. However, the developer 
has offered tours of a completed home and one in construction, both with the same floor plan in 
Lindsborg.  

Hiring: I’m pleased to report that we have filled the Assistant to the City Administrator position. Callie 
Arnold will be starting as the Assistant to the City Administrator on February 19. Callie is a Hillsboro 
native and recent Bethany College graduate in English. She brings excellent writing skills and positive 
energy among other qualifications to the position. The water/sewer position is also being filled with an 
internal transfer. Ayden Brammer, who started with Streets last year, is moving over to the water/sewer 
department. We have begun looking for his replacement in Streets.   

Fire District Meeting Follow-up: Ben and I met with our township partners on February 8. I felt like the 
meeting went well. All the members attending were pleased with the service and understood the 
changing costs for the service. The agreement we have with the townships and city of Lehigh has a cap 
of 5 mills for fees charged. That is consistent with the statute for fire districts. At this point there isn’t 
much that needs to be done with the agreements, but we did let them know that they should be 
planning on maxing out the 5 mill for service.   

Health Insurance Savings: Attached is the Health Insurance savings report for January. Compared to a 
fully funded BCBS plan, the city saved $6,664.84 for the month, $31,585.85 for the plan year that ends in 
June. The City’s reserve fund has a balance of $101,716.90. 

Financial Reports: January financial reports are attached. Overall, we are starting 2024 in good financial 
position. Our expenditures are highly seasonal, so its difficult to make any significant determinations on 
financial position now. Once we complete the first quarter, I will begin assembling dashboard reports.  

Out of Office: I’ll be out of the office on a family trip starting tomorrow, February 21 until Saturday, 
February 24.  

  



 
 

To: Senator Mike Thompson, Chairman, Kansas Senate Federal and State Affairs Committee 

Date: February 14, 2024 

Chairman Thompson and members of the Senate Federal and State Affairs Committee: 

I am writing to express my full support for Senate Bill 431, which seeks to honor the remarkable life and 
legacy of Father Emil Joseph Kapaun. Father Kapaun is not only a Marion County, KS hero, he represents 
the best of all Kansans. Father Kapaun's selfless dedication to service, his unwavering courage, and his 
profound impact on the lives of countless individuals make him a truly deserving candidate for 
recognition. 

Father Emil Kapaun's story is one of extraordinary heroism and compassion. As a chaplain during the 
Korean War, he displayed immense bravery by tending to the spiritual and physical needs of his fellow 
soldiers, often risking his own life to provide comfort and aid on the battlefield. His acts of courage and 
sacrifice, including his refusal to abandon wounded soldiers and his steadfast commitment to upholding 
the values of faith and humanity in the face of adversity, serve as a shining example of the best of the 
human spirit. 

Moreover, Father Kapaun's legacy extends far beyond his actions during the war. His profound impact 
on the lives of those he served continues to inspire generations, both within the Marion County 
community and beyond. Through his compassionate ministry, he touched the hearts of many and left an 
indelible mark on the world. 

By honoring Father Emil Joseph Kapaun through Senate Bill 431, we not only pay tribute to a true 
American hero but also uphold the values of courage, compassion, and selflessness that he embodied. 
This recognition serves as a reminder of the importance of service to others and the enduring power of 
faith in times of trial. 

I urge all Kansans to support Senate Bill 431 and join in honoring the memory of Father Emil Joseph 
Kapaun, whose life serves as a beacon of hope and inspiration for us all. 

Thank you for the opportunity to provide this testimony and thank you for your consideration. 

Mayor Lou Thurston 
City of Hillsboro 
118 E Grand Avenue 
Hillsboro, KS 67063 
lthurston@cityofhillsboro.net 

 

 

mailto:lthurston@cityofhillsboro.net


Employee Tier # of 
Employees

Illustrative 
Rates

Total 
Illustrative 

Rates

Umbrella 
Policy Rates

Total 
Umbrella 

Policy Rates

TPA Admin 
Fee

Monthly 
Medical 

Claims Paid

Monthly 
Rx Claims 

Paid

Risk 
Management 

Fee

Gross Savings 
of Freedom 

Choice

Net Savings 
of Freedom 

Choice

Single 8 840.41$      6,723.28$    559.65$      4,477.20$    416.00$      
Employee/Spouse 7 1,680.82$  11,765.74$  1,119.30$  7,835.10$    364.00$      
Employee/Child 4 1,470.71$  5,882.84$    979.38$      3,917.52$    208.00$      
Family 6 2,101.02$  12,606.12$  1,399.12$  8,394.72$    312.00$      

25 36,977.98$  24,624.54$  1,300.00$  3,066.67$  581.39$  740.54$       7,405.38$    6,664.84$  

July, 2023 through June, 2024

City of Hillsboro
911280

Monthly Claims Analysis for FreedomChoice
January, 2024

FreedomChoice
Group Health Plan

Freedom  Claims Management, Inc
P.O. Box 1365

Great Bend, KS  67530
620-792-9151 - Telephone

620-792-3389 - Fax



# of 
Employees

Total 
Illustrative 

Rates

Total Umbrella 
Policy Rates

TPA Admin 
Fee

Monthly Medical 
Claims Paid

Monthly Rx 
Claims Paid

Risk 
Management 

Fee*

Gross Savings 
of Freedom 

Choice

Net Savings of 
Freedom 

Choice
July-23 25 34,666.87$    23,085.52$    1,300.00$  413.71$            1,003.75$     886.39$        8,863.89$     7,977.50$      
August-23 24 34,666.87$    23,085.52$    1,248.00$  3,232.35$         4,067.91$     303.31$        3,033.09$     2,729.78$      
September-23 24 35,087.07$    23,365.34$    1,248.00$  2,669.37$         2,654.40$     515.00$        5,149.96$     4,634.96$      
October-23 23 33,826.46$    22,525.87$    1,196.00$  1,502.73$         2,792.90$     580.90$        5,808.96$     5,228.06$      
November-23 24 35,717.37$    23,785.07$    1,248.00$  13,178.12$       2,152.61$     (464.64)$       (4,646.43)$    (4,181.79)$     
December-23 25 36,977.98$    24,624.54$    1,300.00$  1,014.85$         558.05$         948.05$        9,480.54$     8,532.49$      
January-24 25 36,977.98$    24,624.54$    1,300.00$  3,066.67$         581.39$         740.54$        7,405.38$     6,664.84$      
February-24 0 -$                 -$                 -$            -$                   -$               -$               -$               -$                
March-24 0 -$                 -$                 -$            -$                   -$               -$               -$               -$                
April-23 0 -$                 -$                 -$            -$                   -$               -$               -$               -$                
May-23 0 -$                 -$                 -$            -$                   -$               -$               -$               -$                
June-23 0 -$                 -$                 -$            -$                   -$               -$               -$               -$                

247,920.60$  165,096.40$  8,840.00$  25,077.80$       13,811.01$   3,509.54$     35,095.39$   31,585.85$    

Group Health Plan

City of Hillsboro
911280

Monthly Claims Analysis for Freedom Choice
July 1, 2023 through June 30, 2024

FreedomChoice

*Negative amounts in this column are not billed as such. Negative amounts will be billed as $0 Risk Management Fee.

Freedom  Claims Management, Inc
P.O. Box 1365 

Great Bend, KS  67530
620-792-9151 - Telephone

620-792-3389 - Fax



# FUND 

UNENCUMBERED  
BEGINNING CASH 

AT 12/31/2023
 TOTAL 

RECEIPTS 
 TOTAL 

DISBURSEMENTS 

 UNENCUMBERED 
ENDING CASH AT 

01/31/2024 
 ENCUMBRANCES 

AS OF 01/31 
 CASH BALANCE 
AT MONTH END 

101 GENERAL 186,373.26             421,996.29       221,081.33           387,288.22             53,627.03               333,661.19         
102 LIBRARY 6,447.25                 48,754.39         7,039.40                48,162.24               48,162.24            
103 RECREATION 312.01                    12,181.83         -                         12,493.84               12,493.84            
105 INDUSTRIAL 17,714.00               12,182.40         19,859.24             10,037.16               10,037.16            
106 AIRPORT REVOLVING 1,325.43                 606.19               1,172.84                758.78                    758.78                 
107 SPECIAL PARK 2,761.47                 -                     -                         2,761.47                 2,761.47              
207 SPECIAL HIGHWAY 71,325.80               18,201.67         -                         89,527.47               89,527.47            
212 MUSEUM TRUST 41,654.21               75.85                 -                         41,730.06               41,730.06            
215 SPECIAL LAW ENFORCE/FIRE 61,324.14               12,199.64         598.00                   72,925.78               72,925.78            
216 MUNICIPAL COURT 1,402.80                 1,020.00            20.26                     2,402.54                 2,402.54              
217 DARE 345.03                    -                     -                         345.03                    345.03                 
218 LOCAL SALES TAX 379,910.40             26,086.02         -                         405,996.42             405,996.42         
225 LAND BANK 17,464.09               900.00               142.00                   18,222.09               18,222.09            
300 EQUIPMENT RESERVE 128,355.85             739.37               3,096.08                125,999.14             125,999.14         
301 FIRE EQUIPMENT REPL FUND 117,291.78             -                     2,275.01                115,016.77             115,016.77         
310 EMPLOYEE WITHHOLDING 8,185.61                 -                     -                         8,185.61                 8,185.61              
311 UTILITY SALES TAX 12,882.17               8,223.47            8,057.87                13,047.77               13,047.77            
400 CIP 528.75                    30,000.00         774.39                   29,754.36               29,754.36            
412 TREE SCREENING 8,033.24                 -                     -                         8,033.24                 8,033.24              
440 HCMC FUND 120,210.89             263.75               8,638.34                111,836.30             111,836.30         
460 STREET IMPROVEMENT PROJ 56,084.94               -                     -                         56,084.94               56,084.94            
470 TIF DISTRICT 21,304.93               -                     -                         21,304.93               21,304.93            
475 SPEC LAW ENF TRUST FUND 5,312.78                 -                     -                         5,312.78                 5,312.78              
516 GENERAL BOND & INTEREST 86,965.96               106,984.06       151,693.40           42,256.62               42,256.62            
618 WATER 209,629.38             73,601.33         54,342.39             228,888.32             13,029.46               215,858.86         
619 ELECTRIC 699,423.45             239,986.16       158,848.37           780,561.24             11,299.42               769,261.82         
620 REFUSE 80,576.29               32,297.06         40,250.70             72,622.65               72,622.65            
621 SEWER 359,829.97             61,650.09         45,114.04             376,366.02             4,934.95                 371,431.07         
716 INSURANCE PROCEEDS FUND 2,250.00                 -                     -                         2,250.00                 2,250.00              

REPORT TOTAL 2,705,225.88         1,107,949.57    723,003.66           3,090,171.79         82,890.86              3,007,280.93      

CITY OF HILLSBORO, KANSAS
MONTHLY FINANCIAL REPORT FOR THE MONTH ENDING JANUARY 31, 2024



JAN YTD: 8.33%

# FUND NAME
 BUDGETED 
REVENUE 

 JANUARY 
REVENUE 

 YEAR TO DATE 
REVENUE 

% OF YTD 
REVENUE

 YTD REVENUE NOT 
RECEIVED 

101 GENERAL TOTAL 1,976,619.00   421,996.29        421,996.29         92.70% 1,554,622.71           
102 LIBRARY TOTAL 95,460.00         48,754.39          48,754.39           84.20% 46,705.61                 
103 RECREATION TOTAL 23,882.00         12,181.83          12,181.83           77.80% 11,700.17                 
105 INDUSTRIAL TOTAL 73,920.00         12,182.40          12,182.40           103.20% 61,737.60                 
106 AIRPORT REVOLVING TOTAL 9,500.00           606.19                606.19                 39.70% 8,893.81                   
107 SPECIAL PARK TOTAL 2,500.00           -                      -                        59.70% 2,500.00                   
207 SPECIAL HIGHWAY TOTAL 76,200.00         18,201.67          18,201.67           70.40% 57,998.33                 
212 MUSEUM TRUST TOTAL 75.85                  75.85                   
215 SPECIAL LAW ENFORCE/FIRE  TOTAL 23,966.00         12,199.64          12,199.64           82.90% 11,766.36                 
216 MUNICIPAL COURT TOTAL 1,020.00            1,020.00              
218 LOCAL SALES TAX (FAC) TOTAL 380,000.00      26,086.02          26,086.02           116.50% 353,913.98              
225 LAND BANK TOTAL 900.00                900.00                 
300 EQUIPMENT RESERVE TOTAL 100,000.00      739.37                739.37                 265.10% 99,260.63                 
301 FIRE EQUIPMENT REPL FUND  TOTAL -                      -                        
311 UTILITY SALES TAX TOTAL 90,000.00         8,223.47            8,223.47              72.50% 81,776.53                 
400 CIP TOTAL 75,000.00         30,000.00          30,000.00           172.50% 45,000.00                 
440 HCMC FUND TOTAL 263.75                263.75                 
458 PBC FAC P & I TOTAL -                      -                        
470 TIF DISTRICT TOTAL 27,600.00         -                      -                        75.90% 27,600.00                 
475 SPEC LAW ENF TRUST FUND TOTAL -                      -                        
516 GENERAL BOND & INTEREST TOTAL 875,427.00      106,984.06        106,984.06         103.00% 768,442.94              
618 WATER TOTAL 1,212,000.00   73,601.33          73,601.33           62.10% 1,138,398.67           
619 ELECTRIC TOTAL 3,623,000.00   239,986.16        239,986.16         63.41% 3,383,013.84           
620 REFUSE TOTAL 400,100.00      32,297.06          32,297.06           101.10% 367,802.94              
621 SEWER TOTAL 770,000.00      61,650.09          61,650.09           68.10% 708,349.91              
716 INSURANCE PROCEEDS FUND -                      -                        

 TOTAL REVENUES: 9,835,174.00  1,107,949.57    1,107,949.57     11.27% 8,729,484.03          

CITY OF HILLSBORO, KANSAS
BUDGET TO ACTUAL REVENUE REPORT FOR THE YEAR ENDING JANUARY 31, 2024

AS OF JANUARY 31, 2024



JAN YTD: 8.33%

# FUND NAME
 BUDGETED 
EXPENSES 

 JANUARY 
EXPENSES 

 YEAR TO DATE 
EXPENSES & 

ENCUMBRANCES 
% OF YTD 
EXPENSES

 YTD BUDGET 
UNEXPENDED 

GENERAL FUND
101-110 LEGISLATIVE TOTAL 122,500.00        7,495.89          7,746.19               6.32% 114,753.81        
101-120 ADMINISTRATIVE TOTAL 418,750.00        49,365.48        59,584.88             14.23% 359,165.12        
101-210 POLICE TOTAL 619,444.54        57,770.03        58,548.82             9.45% 560,895.72        
101-220 FIRE TOTAL 159,400.00        3,619.80          13,736.73             8.62% 145,663.27        
101-250 PUBLIC SAFETY TOTAL 6,000.00            -                   -                         0.00% 6,000.00            
101-310 PARKS TOTAL 42,000.00          921.10             921.10                   2.19% 41,078.90          
101-320 POOL TOTAL 124,800.00        3,788.07          3,788.07               3.04% 121,011.93        
101-330 GOLF TOTAL 275,104.00        14,007.94        31,335.37             11.39% 243,768.63        
101-340 SPORTS COMPLEX TOTAL 124,303.00        7,878.62          7,878.62               6.34% 116,424.38        
101-350 MUSEUM TOTAL 77,001.00          5,411.19          6,288.19               8.17% 70,712.81          
101-410 STREETS TOTAL 405,066.00        28,625.02        42,202.20             10.42% 362,863.80        
101-510 BLDG INSPECTOR TOTAL 88,680.00          7,708.63          8,188.63               9.23% 80,491.37          
101-530 COURT TOTAL 9,400.00            1,544.48          1,544.48               16.43% 7,855.52            
101-550 TOURISM TOTAL 16,000.00          1,000.00          1,000.00               6.25% 15,000.00          
101-910 MISC GENERAL TOTAL 653,200.00        30,100.00        30,100.00             4.61% 623,100.00        

101 GENERAL TOTAL 3,141,648.54    219,236.25     272,863.28           8.69% 2,868,785.26    
102 LIBRARY TOTAL 161,770.00        7,039.40          7,039.40               4.35% 154,730.60        
103 RECREATION TOTAL 24,130.00          -                   -                         0.00% 24,130.00          
105 INDUSTRIAL TOTAL 79,030.00          20,021.49        20,021.49             25.33% 59,008.51          
106 AIRPORT REVOLVING TOTAL 14,500.00          1,172.84          1,172.84               8.09% 13,327.16          
107 SPECIAL PARKS TOTAL 3,400.00            -                   -                         0.00% 3,400.00            
207 SPECIAL HIGHWAY TOTAL 150,000.00        -                   -                         0.00% 150,000.00        
212 MUSEUM TRUST TOTAL -                   -                         
213 TOWNSHIP FIRE EQUIPMENT -                   -                         
215 SPECIAL LAW ENFORCE/FIRE  TOTAL 71,200.00          -                   -                         0.00% 71,200.00          
216 MUNICIPAL COURT TOTAL 20.26               20.26                     
218 LOCAL SALES TAX TOTAL 700,000.00        -                   -                         0.00% 700,000.00        
225 LAND BANK TOTAL 142.00             142.00                   
300 EQUIPMENT RESERVES TOTAL 225,000.00        3,096.08          3,096.08               1.38% 221,903.92        
301 FIRE EQUIPMENT REPL FUND  TOTAL 2,275.01          2,275.01               
311 UTILITY SALES TAX TOTAL 90,000.00          8,057.87          8,057.87               8.95% 81,942.13          
400 CIP TOTAL 774.39             774.39                   
440 HCMC FUND TOTAL -                   -                         
458 PBC FAC P & I TOTAL 8,638.34          8,638.34               
470 TIF DISTRICT TOTAL 27,700.00          -                   -                         0.00% 27,700.00          
516 GENERAL BOND & INTEREST TOTAL 642,321.00        151,693.40     151,693.40           23.62% 490,627.60        

WATER FUND
618-810 WATER DISTRIBUTION TOTAL 398,850.00        25,048.17        25,048.17             6.28% 373,801.83        
618-811 WATER TRANSFERS TOTAL 100,000.00        -                   -                         
618-812 WATER PRODUCTION TOTAL 1,697,720.00    30,833.62        43,863.08             2.58% 1,653,856.92    

618 WATER TOTAL 2,196,570.00    55,881.79        68,911.25             3.14% 2,127,658.75    
619 ELECTRIC TOTAL 3,249,486.00    157,147.51     168,446.93           5.18% 3,081,039.07    
620 REFUSE TOTAL 461,177.00        37,315.69        37,315.69             8.09% 423,861.31        
621 SEWER TOTAL 1,244,750.00    41,815.29        46,750.24             3.76% 1,197,999.76    
716 INSURANCE PROCEEDS FUND TOTAL -                   -                         

TOTALS 12,482,682.54  714,327.61     797,218.47           6.39% 11,597,314.07  

CITY OF HILLSBORO, KANSAS
BUDGET TO ACTUAL EXPENSE REPORT FOR THE YEAR ENDING JANUARY 31, 2024

AS OF JANUARY 31, 2024


	Agenda 02.20.24.pdf
	2024.02.20 Vouchers for Approval $295,857.07 SCANNED
	2024.02.06 Council Minutes for Approval
	2024.02.20 CDBG - Vouchers for Approval
	2023_SLETF Council Report
	National FFA Week - 2024 Proclamation (1)
	2024.02.20 Ord 1383 Zoning at 501 S Main
	Z 2024-01 501 S Main packet

	2024.02.20 Contract Mowing
	2024.02.20 Landscape Services Agreement- Plenert

	2024.02.20 Hillsboro Ford - Statement
	2024.02.20 CC Fees SR
	2024.02.20 CC Fees SR.pdf
	2024.02 Summary by Payment Type for CC Review.pdf
	SUMMARY



	2024.02.20 Policy 70 SR
	Policy 70 Aquatic Center Admission Policy.pdf

	2024.02.20 Policy 93 SR
	93 Service Disconnection Policy - REDLINE Revised 2024.02.pdf

	2023 Year in Review
	Administrators Report 02.20.24.pdf
	Administrators Report 02.20.24.pdf
	2024.02.14 Mayor Testimony SB 431.pdf
	911280_City of Hillsboro_Savings Report 012024.pdf
	2024.01 Financial Reports for Council.pdf
	2024.01 Monthly Encumbered Cash Report
	2024.01 Monthly Budget to Actual Revenue
	2024.01 Monthly Budget to Actual Expenses



